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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
As of January 1, 2015

Mr. Tommy Espinoza, President Business: (602) 417-1409
President/CEO Cell: (602) 684-8082
Raza Development Fund, Inc. Home: (602) 276-3983
1 East Washington Street, #£2250 E-mail: tespinoza@razafund.org
Phoenix, AZ 85004

Assistant: Ms. Star Reyes
Residence Council District Business: (602) 417-1406
6631 S. 38™ Street District #8 E-mail: sreyes@razafund.org
Phoenix, AZ 85042 Kate Gallego
Appointed: July 5, 2006
Reappointed: July 6, 2011
Term: 07-06-2011 to 11-01-2017
Replaced: Dan Robledo
Ms. Christa Severns, Vice President Cell: (602) 499-5390
Principal E-mail: christa@christaseverns.com
Christa Severns Communications
Residence Council District
314 E. Orange Drive District #4
Phoenix, AZ 85012 Laura Pastor
Appointed: November 30, 2011
Reappointed: November 6, 2013
Term: 11-01-2013 to 11-01-2019
Replaced: Lydia Lee
Ms. Judy Bernas, Treasurer Business: (602) 827-2017
Associate Vice President Cell: (602) 361-4261
UA External Relations - Phoenix Home: (602) 626-8194
550 E. Van Buren Street E-mail: jbernas@email.arizona.edu
Phoenix, AZ 85004

Assistant: Ms. Barbara Quinlan
Residence Council District Business: (602) 827-2024
1524 W. Tuckey Lane  District #5 E-mail: bquinlan@email.arizona.edu

Phoenix, AZ 85015 Daniel Valenzuela
Appointed: February 6, 2013

Term: 02-06-2013 to 11-01-2017
Replaced: Fred DuVal
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Mr. Sal Rivera, Secretary
Partner and Shareholder

Rivera Law Group, P.C.

1440 E. Missouri Avenue, #115
Phoenix, AZ 85014

Council District
District #6
Sal DiCiccio

Residence
7315 N. 4" Drive
Phoenix, AZ 85021

Appointed: September 9, 2009
Term: 09-09-2009 to 05-01-2015
Replaced: Mernoy E. Harrison, Jr.

Business: (602) 200-9530
Cell: (602) 391-8581
E-mail: Sal@riveralawgroup.com

Mr. Donald P. Keuth, Director
President

Phoenix Community Alliance
1 East Washington Street, #440
Phoenix, AZ 85004

Residence Council District
8102 S. 18" Place District #8
Phoenix, AZ 85042 Kate Gallego

Appointed: October 13, 2003
Reappointed: January 19, 2011
Term: 01-19-2011 to 05-01-2015
Replaced: Sandra Abalos

Business: (602) 254-7477 ext. 23

Cell: (602) 625-8900

Home: (480) 598-0787

E-mail: don@phoenixcommunityalliance.com

Mr. Bruce D. Mosby, Director

Mosbhy and Company, Inc.

dba Peets Coffee and Tea Shops

Phoenix Sky Harbor Airport

3400 E. Sky Harbor Boulevard (Terminal 4)
Phoenix, AZ 85034

Residence Council District
1011 E. Port Au Prince Lane District #3
Phoenix, AZ 85022 Bill Gates

Appointed: July 7, 2010
Reappointed: November 6, 2013
Term: 11-01-2013 to 11-01-2019
Replaced: Rita Carrillo

Cell: (602) 300-1583
E-mail: bruce@mosbyco.com
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Ms. Barbara Ryan Thompson, Director Business:
Executive V.P./Chief Operating Officer Cell:
E-mail:

Helios Education Foundation

2415 East Camelback Road, Suite 500 Assistant:
Phoenix, AZ 85016 Business:

E-mail:
Residence Council District

3630 North 49th Street  District #6
Phoenix, AZ 85018 Sal DiCiccio

Appointed: January 15, 2014
Term: 1-15-2014 to 11-01-2017
Replaced: Andrei Cherny

(602) 381-2263
(480) 695-2418
bryan@helios.org

Susan Sullivan
602-381-2268
ssullivan@helios.org

Ms. Charlene Tarver, Director Business: (480) 538-4859
Shareholder Cell:
Tarver Law Group E-mail:

Concord Place
2999 North 44th Street, Suite 306
Phoenix, AZ 85018

Residence Council District
18440 N. 68th St. District #2
Unit #3105 Jim Waring (Vice Mayor)

Phoenix, AZ 85054

Appointed: November 20, 2013
Term: 11-20-2013 to 05-01-2015
Replaced: Mark Winkleman

(480) 406-8324
ctarver@tarverlaw.org

Ms. Marian Yim, Director Business:
Shareholder Cell:
Wong Fujii Carter, P.C. Home:
3003 North Central Avenue, #1000 E-mail:
Phoenix, AZ 85012

Residence Council District

9044 N. 33" Place District #3

Phoenix, AZ 85028 Bill Gates

Appointed: November 14, 2007
Reappointed: November 6, 2013
Term: 11-01-2013 to 11-01-2019
Replaced: Joanna de’Shay

(602) 287-3360, ext. 205
(602) 206-7786

(602) 996-5320
myim@wongfujiicarter.com
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COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

Executive Committee

Mr. Tommy Espinoza, Chair
Ms. Christa Severns

Ms. Judy Bernas

Mr. Sal Rivera

Finance Committee

Ms. Judy Bernas, Chair
Ms. Barbara Ryan Thompson
Ms. Marian Yim

Nominating Committee

Mr. Don Keuth, Chair
Mr. Bruce Mosby
Ms. Marian Yim

Communications and Government Affairs Committee

Mr. Sal Rivera, Chair
Ms. Charlene Tarver
Mr. Don Keuth

Community Impact Fund Committee

Ms. Christa Severns, Chair
Mr. Bruce Mosby
Ms. Barbara Ryan Thompson

Appointed

October 16, 2014
October 16, 2014
October 16, 2014
October 16, 2014

October 16, 2014
October 16, 2014
October 16, 2014

October 16, 2014
October 16, 2014
October 16, 2014

October 16, 2014
October 16, 2014
October 16, 2014

October 16, 2014
October 16, 2014
October 16, 2014
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A PHOENIX

Board of Directors

Committee Objectives
As of April 12, 2012

Board of Directors — Powers and Duties
It shall be the duty of the board of directors to control and manage the property and business of the corporation.
Generally, and without limitation, the board shall have the power and shall operate the business of the corporation in

a prudent and careful manner in the best interests of the purposes of the corporation. (Amended and Restated Bylaws
Section 2.4)

Executive Committee

The board of directors shall have the power to . . . appoint an executive committee with such powers as the board
may, by resolution, delegate to such committee. (Articles of Incorporation, Article VIII)

Membership. The Executive Committee members shall consist of the board of directors’ President, Vice President,
Treasurer and Secretary. The board of directors’ President shall serve as the Executive Committee’s Chairman.

Scope of Duties. The Executive Committee’s duties will include:

a. Assist President Carry Out Duties. The Executive Committee shall assist the President of the board of
directors carry out the President’s duties and responsibilities. The Phoenix IDA’s Amended and Restated
Bylaws states that the President shall preside at all board of directors’ meetings. The President shall sign
all deed and conveyances, all contracts and agreements, and all other instruments requiring execution on
behalf of the corporation, and shall act as operating and directing head of the corporation, subject to
policies established by the board of directors. (Amended and Restated Bylaws, Section 3.5)

b. Review Personnel Matters. The Executive Committee shall review all personnel and related matters of the
Phoenix IDA and make specific recommendations to the full board of directors for any action requiring
full board of directors’ approval.

Required Time Commitment. Serving on the Executive Committee requires attending monthly meetings, and
other meetings, as the board of directors’ President deems necessary. Executive Committee membership involves
a minimum time commitment of 1 hour per meeting.

Finance Committee

Membership. The board of directors” Treasurer shall serve as Finance Committee’s Chairman, and other members
shall consist of at least two additional members of the board of directors as may be appointed by the President of
the board of directors from time to time.

Scope of Duties. The Finance Committee’s duties will include:

a. Assist Treasurer Carry Out Duties. The Finance Committee shall assist the Treasurer of the board of
directors carry out the Treasurer’s duties and responsibilities. The Phoenix IDA’s Amended and Restated



Bylaws states that the Treasurer shall have general custody of all of the funds and securities of the
corporation except such as may be required by law to be deposited with any state official; the Treasurer shall
see to the deposit of the funds of the corporation in such bank or banks as the board of directors may
designate. Regular books of account shall be kept under the Treasurer's direction and supervision, and the
treasurer shall render financial statements to the President and directors at proper times. The Treasurer shall
have charge of the preparation and filing of such reports and financial statements and returns as may be
required by law. The Treasurer shall give to the corporation such fidelity bond as may be required, and the
premium therefore shall be paid by the corporation as an operating expense. (Amended and Restated
Bylaws, Section 3.8)

b. Investment Policy Review and Oversight. The Finance Committee shall review and oversee all of the
Phoenix IDA’s investments and make specific recommendations to the full board of directors for any
action requiring full board of directors’ approval.

c. Financial Policy Review and Oversight. The Finance Committee shall review all financial policies and
procedures of the Phoenix IDA and make specific recommendations to the full board of directors for any
action requiring approval by the full board of directors.

d. Budget Review and Oversight. The Finance Committee shall review and oversee preparation of the
Phoenix IDA’s annual budget and make specific recommendations to the full board of directors for any
action requiring approval by the full board of directors.

e. Financial Audit Review and Oversight. The Finance Committee shall review and oversee all audits of the
Phoenix IDA’s financial statements and make specific recommendations to the full board of directors for
any action requiring approval by the full board of directors.

Required Time Commitment. Serving on the Finance Committee requires attending regular quarterly meetings,
and other meetings, as the board of directors’ Treasurer deems necessary. Membership on the Finance Committee
involves a minimum time commitment of 1 hour per meeting.

Nominating Committee

A Nominating Committee shall be appointed to assist in the appointment of the officers of the corporation’s board
of directors. (Amended and Restated Bylaws, Section 3.2).

Membership. The Nominating Committee will consist of not less than 3 directors appointed by the then
current president of the board of directors.

Scope of Duties. The Nominating Committee’s duties will include:

a. Officer Responsibilities. Explaining the roles and obligations of each office to candidates for office.

b. Nomination Process. Accepting a listing of nominations and self-nominations for each office, which
would include from each candidate (i) a brief statement as to why the particular candidate would be suited
for the office, (ii) an affirmation to commit the time necessarily required by each office, and (iii) a brief
statement as to how the candidate would go about fulfilling the duties of the office.

The list of candidates will be reduced to writing with the assistance of legal advisor and distributed to all directors
prior to the meeting at which the election of officers will take place. At the meeting at which the election of
officers is conducted, the Nominating Committee will present the candidates, and at the pleasure of the board of
directors, each candidate may make a brief statement as to their candidacy, after which the board of directors will
proceed with the appointment. (Amended and Restated Bylaws, Section 3.11)
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Required Time Commitment. Serving on the Nominating Committee may require attending one or two
meetings as convened by the Nominating Committee’s Chairman prior to the annual meeting of the board of
directors at which the election of officers will take place. Membership on the Nominating Committee may
involve a substantial time commitment, as necessary, to complete the duties outlined above, but would be limited
to the two or three months leading up to the Phoenix IDA’s election of officers.

Community Impact Fund Committee

Membership. The Committee will consist of not less than three (3) directors appointed by the then current
president of the board of directors.

Scope of Duties. The Committee’s duties will include:

a. ldentify Community Impact Investing Collaborations. The Committee will identify and promote
community-based collaborations that (i) build on existing organizational strengths, (ii) increase the
capacity and resources of nonprofits that serve the working poor and minority populations, and (iii)
address broader community and economic development issues.

b. Identify Community Impact Investing Funding Priorities. The Committee will review and identify funding
priorities in the areas of: (i) community and economic development and (ii) education.

Required Time Commitment. Serving on the Committee requires attending regular quarterly meetings, and
other meetings, as the Committee chairman deems necessary. Committee membership involves a minimum time
commitment of 1.5 hours per quarterly meeting, and also requires attending individual follow-up meetings with
the Phoenix IDA’s executive director as scheduled between the quarterly meetings.

Communications and Government Affairs Committee

Membership. The Committee will consist of not less than three (3) directors appointed by the then current
president of the board of directors.

Scope of Duties. The Committee’s duties will include:

a. Expand Awareness of Phoenix IDA’s Brand. The Committee will expand awareness of the Phoenix IDA’s
brand, services and accomplishments by developing a communications strategy that focuses on and
addresses media relations, community outreach, social media, and marketing collateral.

b. Participate in Government Affairs. The Committee will participate in government affairs and relations by
(i) developing a communication plan with City Council, and (ii) monitoring federal and state legislation
that could impact the issuance of bonds and related services.

Required Time Commitment. Serving on the Committee requires attending regular quarterly meetings, and
other meetings, as the Committee chairman deems necessary. Committee membership involves a minimum time
commitment of 1.5 hours per quarterly meeting, and also requires attending individual follow-up meetings with
the Phoenix IDA’s executive director as scheduled between the quarterly meetings.



ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF

THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA
(A political subdivision of the State of Arizona)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That we, the undersigned, whose names and addresses
are hereinafter set forth, each of whom is an elector of the
City of Phoenix, Arizona, have this day associated ourselves
for the purpose of forming an Industrial Development Authority
under the laws of the State of Arizona, and for that purpose do
hereby adopt the following Articles of Incorporation:

ARTICLE I

The name of this corporation shall be THE INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA, and the
location of its principal place of business shall be in the
City of Phoenix, Arizona as shall be fixed by the Board of
Directors from time to time.

ARTICLE II

The names and residence addresses of the incorporat-
ors, each of whom is a qualified elector of the City of
Phoenix, Arizona, are as follows:

NAME POST OFFICE ADDRESS

Marriner Cardon 3148 North 53rd Street
Phoenix, Arizona 85018

Ervin N. Hanson 12810 North Second Street
Phoenix, Arizona 85022

George Iliff 1001 West Encanto Blvd.
Phoenix, Arizona 85007

ARTICLE III

The incorporators herein received permission to organ-
ize the corporation pursuant to Resolution number
duly passed by the Mayor and Council of the City of Phoenix at
a regular meeting of the governing body held _February 3, 1981
and the final form of these Articles of Incorporation were
approved by Resolution No. _]15483 duly passed by the Mayor
and Council of the City of Phoenix at a regular meeting of the
governing body held July 7 , 1981.




ARTICLE IV

This corporation shall perform essential governmental
functions and its activities shall serve public purposes and
shall be in furtherance of the health, safety and welfare of
the residents of the greater Phoenix area. The initial
purposes for which this corporation is formed are:

1. In the manner and to the extent provided in Title
9, Chapter 11, Section 9-1151 et seq., of the Arizona Revised
Statutes, as amended, to promote industry and develop trade in
the greater Phoenix area, to stimulate and encourage the
production, development and use of agricultural products and
natural resources, to assist, financially and otherwise, in the
rehabilitation, expansion and development of all kinds of
businesses and industries which will promote and assure job
opportunities and assure an improved standard of living and an
increase in prosperity and health;

2. To acquire, own, construct, lease, sell and
dispose of all kinds of properties;

3. Except as hereinafter provided in these Articles
of Incorporation, to do any and all things and to exercise any
and all powers as provided by Title 9, Chapter 11, Section
9-1151 et seqg., Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 9, Chapter 12,
Section 1221 et seg., Arizona Revised Statutes, and Title 10,
Chapter 5, Section 10-1005, Arizona Revised Statutes, as such
provisions may be amended from time to time.

ARTICLE V

This corporation is a political subdivision of the
State of Arizona and shall have all the powers granted to such
corporation by law, together with all powers incidental thereto
or necessary for the performance thereof, including, without
limitation, the powers provided in Title 9, Chapter 11, Section
9-1151 et seq., Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 9, Chapter 12,
Section 9-1221 et seq., Arizona Revised Statutes, and Title 10,
Chapter 5, Section 10-1005, Arizona Revised Statutes, as such
provisions may be amended from time to time except that all
applications for the financing of any project must be initially
submitted to the City of Phoenix for review and comment and
further, no bonds shall be issued by the Authority with respect
to any project without the approval of the governing body of
the City of Phoenix, which approval shall be given or denied
solely within the discretion and judgment of the governing body.
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ARTICLE VI

: The corporation shall be a nonprofit corporation and
no part of its net earnings remaining after payment of its
expenses shall inure to the benefit of any individual, firm or
corporation, except such reasonable compensation as may
properly be paid for services rendered or property or materials
furnished to the corporation, and no dividends or other pecuni-
ary profits may be declared for the benefit of any director or
other individual, and no director or officer shall be entitled
to participate for profit in any transaction with the corpora-
tion except as hereinabove provided. No substantial part of
the activities of this corporation shall be devoted to carrying
on propaganda for or otherwise attempting to influence legisla-
tion and this corporation shall not participate in or intervene
in any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public
office.

ARTICLE VII

The corporation shall have a board of directors in
which all powers of the corporation shall be vested and which
shall consist of any number of directors, not less than three
nor more than nine, but initially nine, all of whom shall be
qualified as provided by law. The directors shall serve as
such without compensation except that they shall be reimbursed
for their actual expenses incurred in the performance of their
duties in the same manner as is provided for other state
officers. No director shall be an officer or employee of the
City of Phoenix. All directors shall declare any conflict of
interest as provided in Title 38, Chapter 3, Article 8. The
directors shall be elected by the Mayor and Council of the City
of Phoenix, and they shall be so elected that they hold office
for over-lapping terms. At the time of the election of the
first board of directors, the Mayor and Council of the City of
Phoenix shall divide the directors into three groups containing
as nearly equal whole numbers as possible. The first term of
the directors included in the first group shall be two years,
the first term of the directors included in the second group
shall be four years, and the first term of the directors
included in the third group shall be six years, and thereafter
the terms of all directors shall be six years.

The affairs of the corporation shall be conducted by
the board of directors and such officers, including a presi-
dent, vice-president, treasurer, secretary, and such other
officers as the board of directors shall elect or appoint. Any
two or more offices may be held by the same person except the
offices of president and secretary. The board of directors
shall have power to adopt, amend and rescind bylaws and other
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rules and regulations and to appoint an executive committee
with such powers as the board may, by resolution, delegate to
such committee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the original
bylaws and any amendment thereto shall not be effective until
approved by the governing body of the City of Phoenix.

Meetings held by the Board of Directors for any
purpose whatsoever shall be open to the public.

ARTICLE VIII

The board of directors of this corporation, named by
the Mayor and Council of the City of Phoenix, Arizona, by

Resolution Number _ 15683 adopted on _July 7 , 1981,
are:

NAME AND ADDRESS TERM EXPIRES
Marianne Fannin April 28, 1983

77 East Missouri No. 23
Phoenix, Arizona

Paul R. Milus April 28, 1983
6010 East Mountain View Road
Phoenix, Arizona

John A. Kearney April 28, 1983
9037 North 29th Street
Phoenix, Arizona

Richard C. Allen April 28, 1985
322 West Montebello
Phoenix, Arizona

Thomas Aranda, Jr. April 28, 1985
1825 East Nicolet
Phoenix, Arizona

Barbara Callahan April 28, 1985
2320 East Wier
Phoenix, Arizona

Lyman A. Davidson April 28, 1987
5401 East Camelback Road
Phoenix, Arizona

Randolph "Bill" E. Soranson April 28, 1987

2026 East Pasadena
Phoenix, Arizona
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Richard W. Koeb April 28, 1987
5335 Calle Del Norte
Phoenix, Arizona

ARTICLE IX

The City of Phoenix shall not, in any event, be liable
for the payment of the principal of, or interest on, any bonds
of the corporation, or for the performance of any pledge,
mortgage, obligation or agreement of any kind whatsoever which
may be undertaken by the corporation, and none of the bonds of
the corporation or any of its agreements or obligations shall
be construed to constitute an indebtedness or obligation of the
City of Phoenix or the State of Arizona within the meaning of
any constitutional or statutory provision whatsoever.

ARTICLE X

The Articles of Incorporation may at any time, and
from time to time, be amended to make any changes therein and
add any provisions thereto which might have been included in
the Articles of Incorporation in the first instance, provided
that the members of the board of directors of the corporation
first shall file with the Mayor and Council of the City of
Phoenix an application in writing seeking permission to amend
the Articles of Incorporation, specifying in such application
the amendment proposed to be made. The Mayor and Council of
the City of Phoenix shall consider such application and, if, by
resolution, it finds and determines it is wise and expedient,
necessary or advisable that the proposed amendments be made,
authorizes the same to be made, and approves the form of the
proposed amendment, then the persons making such application
shall proceed to amend the Articles in accordance with the
provisions of Title 10, Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended.

ARTICLE XI

The time of the commencement of this corporation shall
be the day these Articles of Incorporation are marked "filed"
by the Arizona Corporation Commission. The duration of the
existence of the corporation shall be perpetual unless it shall
be sooner dissolved pursuant to Tile 9, Chapter 11, Section
9-1187 of the Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended, in which
case the property of the corporation remaining after payment of
its debts and charges shall be distributed to and vest in the
City of Phoenix, Arizona.
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ARTICLE XII

The private property of the officers and directors of
this corporation shall be exempt from liability for its debts
and obligations.

ARTICLE XIII

The affairs of this Corporation shall be conducted on
a fiscal year basis. The fiscal year for the Corporation shall
end on the 30th day of June of each vear.

ARTICLE XVI

When the board of directors of the corporation, by
resolution, shall determine that the purposes for which the
corporation was formed have been substantially complied with
and that all bonds theretofore issued and all obligations
theretofore incurred by the corporation have been fully paid,
the members of the board of directors of the corporation shall
thereupon dissolve the corporation in accordance with the _
orovisions of Title 10 of the Arizona Revised Statutes, as
amended.

ARTICLE XV
Statutory Agent. George I1iff . Whose
address is: - + Phcenix, Arizona, 85013

is hereby appointed agent of the corporation upon whom all
notices and processes, including service of summons, may be
servecd, and service upon such agent shall be lawful personal
service on the corporation. This appointment may be revoked at
any time by the filing of the appointment of another agent as
provided by law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we the undersigned have signed our
names this 6th day of Julv , 1981,

C::; ;_;l ,
A E A

j;;/ N

-
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STATE OF ARIZONA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF MARICOPA )

Before me, the undersigned officer, personally
appeared George Iliff , Marriner Cardon and
Ervin N. Hanson r known to me to be the persons who
executed the foregoing Articles of Incorporation, and acknowl-
edged to me that they executed the same for the purposes
therein expressed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and
official seal this 6th day of July N

21981 .
/j—/“m/f/ //L')«—z«__/

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:
My Gommission Expires Oct. 3, 1984
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SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED
BYLAWS
OF
THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA
(As Amended by the Authority through February 10, 2011
and approved by City Council effective March 23, 2011)

SECTION 1
OFFICES

1.1  Principal Office. The known place of business of the corporation is the office of
its statutory agent. The corporation must maintain its principal place of business in the City of
Phoenix, Arizona. The corporation’s mailing address is: The Industrial Development Authority
of the City of Phoenix, Arizona c/o Executive Director, 251 W. Washington Street, 9" Floor,
Phoenix, Arizona 85003.

1.2 Other Offices. The corporation may maintain offices at such other place or
places, either within or without the State of Arizona, as may be designated from time to time by
the board of directors, where the business of the corporation may be transferred with the same
effect as though done at the principal office.

SECTION 2
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2.1  General Powers; Not a Membership Corporation. All corporate powers shall be
exercised by or under the authority of and the business and affairs of the corporation shall be
managed under the direction of the board of directors. The corporation shall not be a membership
corporation and shall have no members. All rights, powers and responsibilities which inure to
the members of a nonprofit membership corporation shall be vested in the board of directors of
this corporation.

2.2 Number, Qualifications and Election. The board of directors shall consist of nine
(9) persons. All directors shall be duly qualified electors of the City of Phoenix. No director
shall be an officer or employee of the City of Phoenix. The board of directors shall be elected by
the City Council of the City of Phoenix. The initial board of directors shall be divided into three
groups of three directors each, the first group to serve for two years, the second group to serve
for four years, the third group to serve for six years. Upon expiration of each initial term,
successor directors shall be elected by the City Council of the City of Phoenix to serve for terms
of six years. Each director shall hold office until the next annual meeting of the directors nearest
the date on which the director’s term expires and until his successor shall have been duly
qualified and elected by the City Council of the City of Phoenix and shall qualify.




2.3  Vacancies. A vacancy in the board of directors occurring by reason of death,
resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise shall be filled by an election by the City
Council of the City of Phoenix. Any director elected shall serve for the unexpired term of the
vacant office. Failure of the City Council of the City of Phoenix to fill vacancies shall not
operate to reduce the size of the board of directors, but the directors actually in office shall at any
time constitute the board of directors.

2.4  Powers and Duties. It shall be the duty of the board of directors to control and
manage the property and business of the corporation, and to appoint from its own membership
the officers of the corporation to serve at the pleasure of the board. The board shall have the
power to enter into written contracts with officers for terms extending beyond their own terms of
office. Generally, and without limitation, the board shall have the power and shall operate the
business of the corporation in a prudent and careful manner in the best interests of the purposes
of the corporation.

2.5  Place of Meetings. All meetings of the board of directors shall be held at such
place in the City of Phoenix as may be fixed from time to time by the president or the secretary
of the corporation, as stated in the notice of the meeting. The board of directors may hold
meetings outside the City of Phoenix only for educational, marketing, or planning purposes. No
official business may be conducted at a meeting held outside the City limits. Any meeting held
by the board of directors for any purpose whatsoever must be open to the public. To the extent
practicable, teleconferencing facilities will be made available to the public at a location within
the City limits during any meeting for educational, marketing, or planning purposes held outside
the City limits, in order to provide public access.

2.6 Annual Meetings. Annual meetings of the board of directors may be held on the
second Thursday in October or on another date designated by the president or the secretary and
stated in the notice of the meeting. Directors shall, at the annual meeting, appoint officers and
transact such other business as properly may be brought before the meeting. Notice of the time,
date and place of any annual meeting shall be given to the public not less than 24 hours previous
thereto by the president or the secretary or at the direction of either of them.

2.7  Reqgular Meetings. The board of directors may establish a fixed time, date and
place for regularly scheduled meetings. Subject to Section 2.5, regular meetings of the board of
directors may be held at such time and at such place as shall from time to time be determined by
the board. Notice of the time, date and place of any regular meeting shall be given to the public
not less than 24 hours previous thereto by the president or the secretary or at the direction of
either of them.

2.8 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the board may be called by the president,
secretary or at least two directors. Notice of the time, date and place of any special meeting shall
be given to the public not less than 24 hours previous thereto by the president or the secretary or
at the direction of either of them.




2.9  Quorum. A majority of the membership of the board of directors shall constitute
a quorum and the concurrence of a majority of those present and entitled to vote shall be
sufficient to conduct the business of the board, except as may be otherwise specifically provided
by statute or by the articles of incorporation. If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting of
the board of directors, the directors present thereat may adjourn the meeting from time to time,
without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present.

SECTION 3
OFFICERS

3.1  Designation of Titles. The officers of the corporation shall be chosen by the
board of directors and shall be a president, a vice president, a secretary and a treasurer. The
board of directors may also choose additional vice presidents, and one or more assistant
secretaries and assistant treasurers. Any number of offices, except the offices of president and
secretary, may be held by the same person.

3.2  Appointment of Officers. The board of directors at its annual meeting shall
choose a president, one or more vice presidents, a secretary, and a treasurer, each of whom shall
serve at the pleasure of the board of directors. The board of directors at any time may appoint
such other officers and agents as it shall deem necessary who shall hold their offices at the
pleasure of the board of directors and who shall exercise such powers and perform such duties as
shall be determined from time to time by the board.

3.3  Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal,
disqualification or otherwise may be filled by the board of directors at any time.

3.4  President. The president shall preside at all meetings of the board of directors.
The president shall sign all deeds and conveyances, all contracts and agreements, and all other
instruments requiring execution on behalf of the corporation, and shall act as operating and
directing head of the corporation, subject to policies established by the board of directors.

3.5  Vice Presidents. There shall be as many vice presidents as shall be determined
from time to time and they shall perform such duties as may be from time to time assigned to
them. Any one of the vice presidents, as authorized by the board, shall have all the powers and
perform all the duties of the president in case of the president’s temporary absence or inability to
act. In case of the president’s permanent absence or inability to act, the office shall be declared
vacant by the board of directors and a successor chosen by the board.

3.6 Secretary. The secretary shall see that the minutes of all meetings of the board of
directors and of any standing committees are kept. The secretary shall give or cause to be given
required notices of all meetings of the board of directors. The secretary shall have charge of all
the books and records of the corporation except the books of account and in general shall
perform all the duties incident to the office of secretary of a corporation and such other duties as
may be assigned to him or her.



3.7  Treasurer. The treasurer shall have general custody of all of the funds and
securities of the corporation except such as may be required by law to be deposited with any
state official; the treasurer shall see to the deposit of the funds of the corporation in such bank or
banks as the board of directors may designate. Regular books of account shall be kept under the
treasurer’s direction and supervision, and the treasurer shall render financial statements to the
president and directors at proper times. The treasurer shall have charge of the preparation and
filing of such reports and financial statements and returns as may be required by law.

3.8  Assistant Secretaries. There may be such number of assistant secretaries as the
board of directors may from time to time fix, and such persons shall perform such functions as
may be from time to time assigned to them. No assistant secretary shall have power or authority
to collect, account for, or pay over any tax imposed by any federal, state or city government.

3.9  Assistant Treasurers. There may be such number of assistant treasurers as the
board of directors may from time to time fix, and such persons shall perform such functions as
may be from time to time assigned to them. No assistant treasurer shall have the power or
authority to collect, account for, or pay over any tax imposed by any federal, state or city
government.

3.10 Nominating Committee. A Nominating Committee shall be appointed to assist in
the appointment of the officers of the corporation’s board of directors pursuant to Section 3.2 of
these Bylaws. The Nominating Committee will consist of not less than 3 directors appointed by
the then current president of the board of directors. The duties of the Nominating Committee
will include:

a. Explaining the roles and obligations of each office to candidates for office;
and

b. Accepting a listing of nominations and self-nominations for each office,
which would include from each candidate (i) a brief statement as to why the particular candidate
would be suited for the office, (ii) an affirmation to commit the time necessarily required by each
office, and (iii) a brief statement as to how the candidate would go about fulfilling the duties of
the office.

The list of candidates will be reduced to writing and distributed to all directors not less
than two weeks prior to the meeting at which the appointment of officers will take place.

At the meeting at which the appointment of officers is conducted, the Nominating
Committee will present the candidates, and at the pleasure of the board of directors, each
candidate may make a brief statement as to their candidacy, after which the board of directors
will proceed with the appointment.



SECTION 4

INDEMNIFICATION OF
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS

4.1 Indemnification. Except as provided in these bylaws, the corporation shall hold
harmless and indemnify each of its directors, officers, employees and agents (“indemnitee”)
against any and all liability and expenses incurred by an indemnitee in connection with any
threatened or actual proceeding or legal action resulting from the indemnitee’s service to the
corporation or to another entity at the corporation’s request.

4.2  Exclusions. Except insofar as permitted by law, the corporation shall not
indemnify an indemnitee for acts listed in A.R.S. § 10-851.D.

4.3  Procedure. An indemnitee shall notify the corporation promptly of the threat or
commencement of any proceeding or legal action with respect to which the indemnitee intends to
seek indemnification. The corporation is entitled to assume the indemnitee’s defense with
counsel reasonably satisfactory to the indemnitee, unless the indemnitee provides the corporation
with an opinion of counsel reasonably concluding that there may be a conflict of interest between
the indemnitee and the corporation in the defense of the proceeding or legal action. If the
corporation assumes the defense, the corporation is not liable to the indemnitee for legal or other
expenses subsequently incurred by the indemnitee.

44  Expense Advances. The corporation shall advance automatically expenses,
including attorneys’ fees, incurred or to be incurred by an indemnitee in defending a proceeding
or legal action upon receipt of notice and, if required by law, of an undertaking by or on behalf
of the indemnitee to repay all amounts advanced if it is ultimately determined by final judicial
decision (after expiration or exhaustion of any appeal rights) that the indemnitee is not entitled to
be indemnified for such expenses.

45  Settlement of Claims. The corporation is not obligated to indemnify an
indemnitee for any amounts incurred in settlement if settlement is made without the
corporation’s prior written consent. The corporation shall not enter into any settlement that
would impose any penalty or limitation on an indemnitee without the indemnitee’s prior written
consent. Neither the corporation nor the indemnitee will unreasonably withhold consent to any
proposed settlement.

4.6  Effect of Repeal. In order that an indemnitee may rely on the indemnification
promised by this Section, no repeal or amendment of this Section shall reduce the right of an
indemnitee to payment of expenses or indemnification for acts of the indemnitee taken before the
date of repeal or amendment.




SECTION 5
REPEAL, ALTERATION OR AMENDMENT

These bylaws may be repealed, altered or amended, or substitute bylaws may be adopted,
only by a majority of the board of directors at any time. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
original bylaws and any amendment thereto are not effective until approved by the governing
body of the City of Phoenix.
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Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 1. Incorporation (Refs & Annos)

A.R.S. 8§ 35-701
§ 35-701. Definitions

Effective: August 2, 2012
Currentness

In this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:

1. “Corporation” means any corporation organized as an authority as provided in this chapter.

2. “Designated area’ means any area of this state which is either designated pursuant to § 36-1479 as a slum or blighted area
as defined in 8 36-1471, designated by regulation as a pocket of poverty or a neighborhood strategy area by the United States
department of housing and urban development pursuant to title | of the housing and community development act of 1977 (P.L.
95-128; 42 United States Code sections 5301 through 5320), as amended, and the department of housing and urban devel opment
act (P.L. 89-174; 42 United States Code section 3535(d)) or designated by the United States department of housing and urban
development as an empowerment or enterprise zone pursuant to the federal omnibus budget reconciliation act of 1993 (P.L.
103-66; 26 United States Code section 1391(g)).

3. “Governing body” means:

(a) The board or body in which the general |egislative powers of the municipality or the county are vested.

(b) The Arizonaboard of regents with respect to a corporation formed with the permission of the Arizona board of regents.

4. “Income” means gross earnings from wages, salary, commissions, bonuses or tips from all jobs, net earnings from such
person’s or family's own nonfarm business, professional practice or partnership, and net earnings from such person's or family's
own farm. Income includes income, other than earnings, that consists of amounts received from social security or railroad
retirement, interest, dividends, veterans payments, pensions and other regular payments, public assistance or welfare payments,
including aid for dependent children, old age assistance and aid to the blind or totally disabled, but excluding separate payments
for hospital or other medical care.

5. “Manufactured house” means a structure that is manufactured in afactory after June 15, 1976, that is delivered to ahomesite
in more than one section and that is placed on a permanent foundation. The dimensions of the completed house shall not be
less than twenty feet by forty feet, the roof must be sloping, the siding and roofing must be the same as those found in site-built
houses and the house must be eligible for thirty year real estate mortgage financing.
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6. “Municipality” or “county” meansthe Arizona board of regents or any incorporated city or town, including charter cities, or
any county in this state in which a corporation may be organized and in which it is contemplated the corporation will function.

7. “Persons of low and moderate income” means, for the purposes of financing owner-occupied single family dwelling unitsin
areas which the municipality has found, pursuant to § 36-1479, to be slum or blighted areas, as defined in § 36-1471, persons
and families whose income does not exceed two and one-half times the median family income of this state. In all other areasit
means persons and families whose income does not exceed one and one-half times the median family income of this state.

8. “Project” means any land, any building or any other improvement and all real and personal properties, including machinery
and equipment whether or not now in existence or under construction and whether located within or without this state or the
municipality or county approving the formation of the corporation, that are suitable for any of the following:

(a) With respect to acorporation formed with the permission of amunicipality or county other than the Arizonaboard of regents:

(i) Any enterprise for the manufacturing, processing or assembling of any agricultural or manufactured products.

(if) Any commercial enterprisefor the storing, warehousing, distributing or selling of products of agriculture, mining or industry,
or of processes related thereto, including research and development.

(iii) Any office building or buildings for use as corporate or company headquarters or regional offices or the adaptive use for
offices of any building within this state that is on the national register of historic places or rehabilitation of residential buildings
located in registered historic neighborhoods.

(iv) A hedlth careingtitution as defined in § 36-401.

(v) Residential rea property for dwelling units located within the municipality or county approving the formation of the
corporation and, in the case of a county, whether or not also within a municipality that iswithin the county.

(vi) Repairing or rehabilitating single family dwelling units or constructing or repairing residential fences and walls.

(vii) Convention or trade show facilities.

(viii) Airports, docks, wharves, mass commuting facilities, parking facilities or storage or training facilities directly related to
any of the facilities as provided in thisitem.

(ix) Sewage or solid waste disposal facilities or facilities for the furnishing of electric energy, gas or water.

(X) Industrial park facilities.
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(xi) Air or water pollution control facilities.

(xii) Any educational institution that is operated by a nonprofit educational organization that is exempt from taxation under
section 501(c)(3) of the United Statesinternal revenue code! and that is not otherwise funded by state monies, any educational

institution or organization that is established under title 15, chapter 1, article 8 2 and that is owned by a nonprofit organization,
any private nonsectarian school or any private nonsectarian organization established for the purpose of funding ajoint technical
education school district.

(xiii) Research and development facilities.

(xiv) Commercial enterprises, including facilitiesfor office, recreational, hotel, motel and service usesif thefacilities authorized
by thisitem are to be located in a designated area.

(xv) A child welfare agency, as defined in § 8-501, owned and operated by a nonprofit organization.

(xvi) A transportation facility constructed or operated pursuant to title 28, chapter 22. 3
(xvii) A museum operated by a nonprofit organization.

(xviii) Facilities owned or operated by a nonprofit organization described in section 501(c) of the United Statesinternal revenue
code of 1986.

(xix) New or existing correctional facilities within this state.

(b) With respect to a corporation formed with the permission of the Arizona board of regents, any facility consisting of
classrooms, lecture halls or conference centers or any facility for research and development or for manufacturing, processing,
assembling, marketing, storing and transferring items developed through or connected with research and development or in
which the results of such research and development are utilized, but only if the facility is located in an area designated as a
research park by the Arizona board of regents.

9. “Property” means any land, improvements thereon, buildings and any improvements thereto, machinery and equipment of
any and all kinds necessary to a project and any other personal properties deemed necessary in connection with a project.

10. “Research park” means an area of land that has been designated by the Arizona board of regents as a research park for a
university and that, at the date of designation, is owned by this state or by the Arizona board of regents.

11. “Single family dwelling unit” includes any new, used or manufactured house that meets the insuring requirements of the
federal housing administration, the veterans administration or any other insuring entity of the United States government or any
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private mortgage insurance or surety company that is approved by the federal home loan mortgage corporation or the federal
national mortgage association.

Credits

Added as § 9-1151 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Amended by Laws 1972, Ch. 67, § 1, eff. April 24, 1972;
Laws 1974, Ch. 128, § 1, eff. May 9, 1974; Laws 1975, Ch. 99, § 1, eff. May 22, 1975; Laws 1978, Ch. 100, § 2, eff. May 26,
1978; Laws 1979, Ch. 89, 8 1, Laws 1979, Ch. 214, § 2, eff. May 2, 1979; Laws 1980, Ch. 217, 8 1; Laws 1981, Ch. 303, 8 1,
eff. April 30, 1981; Laws 1983, Ch. 284, § 1, eff. April 27, 1983; Laws 1983, Ch. 326, § 1; Laws 1984, Ch. 6, § 4, eff. March
9, 1984; Laws 1984, Ch. 109, § 1; Laws 1984, Ch. 236, § 1. Renumbered as § 35-701 by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, § 1, eff. May
2, 1986. Amended by Laws 1992, Ch. 275, § 2; Laws 1993, Ch. 246, § 3; Laws 1994, Ch. 38, § 1; Laws 1994, Ch. 216, § 1;
Laws 1997, Ch. 1, § 421, eff. Oct. 1, 1997; Laws 1997, Ch. 132, § 1; Laws 1999, Ch. 293, § 1; Laws 2000, Ch. 130, 8 1; Laws
2000, Ch. 395, § 1; Laws 2002, Ch. 20, 8 1, eff. April 15, 2002; Laws 2003, Ch. 128, § 1, eff. April 30, 2003; Laws 2003, Ch.
246, § 3; Laws 2004, Ch. 314, § 8; Laws 2006, Ch. 156, § 2; Laws 2009, Ch. 141, 8§ 3; Laws 2009, 3rd S.S., Ch. 10, § 3; Laws
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Notes of Decisions (8)

Footnotes

1 Internal Revenue Code sections may be found in Title 26 of U.S.C.A.

2 Section 15-181 et seq.

3 Section 28-7701 et seq.
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§ 35-702. Proceedings to incorporate industrial development authority, AZ ST § 35-702

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 1. Incorporation (Refs & Annos)

A.R.S. § 35-702
§ 35-702. Proceedings to incorporate industrial development authority

Currentness

A. Whenever any number of natural persons, not less than three, each of whom is a qualified elector of the municipality or the
county or, in the case of a corporation to be formed with the permission of the Arizona board of regents, qualified electors of
this state, file with any governing body thereof an application in writing seeking permission to apply for the incorporation of
an industrial development board of such municipality or county, such governing body shall consider such application. If the
governing body by resolution finds and determines that it is wise, expedient, necessary or advisable that the corporation be
formed and authorizes the persons making such application to form such corporation, then the persons making such application
shall proceed to incorporate as prescribed by this chapter. No corporation may be formed unless such application first has been
filed with the governing body having jurisdiction and the governing body adopts a resolution as provided in this section. Any
such corporation when formed shall be a political subdivision of the state and have only such governmental powers as are set

forth in this chapter, in chapter 6 of this titte® and the power to enter into intergovernmental agreements in accordance with
title 11, chapter 7, article 3. 2

B. Only one such corporation shall be approved by a municipality or county for operation at any time.

Credits

Added as § 9-1152 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Amended by Laws 1972, Ch. 67, § 2, eff. April 24, 1972;
Laws 1983, Ch. 284, § 2, eff. April 27, 1983. Renumbered as § 35-702 and amended by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, 88 1, 5, eff. May
2, 1986. Amended by Laws 1992, Ch. 275, § 3.

Notes of Decisions (6)

Footnotes

1 Section 35-801 et seq.

2 Section 11-951 et seq.

A.R. S 835702, AZ ST § 35-702

Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legidature
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§ 35-703. Articles of incorporation of industrial development authority, AZ ST § 35-703

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 1. Incorporation (Refs & Annos)

A.R.S. § 35-703
§ 35-703. Articles of incorporation of industrial development authority

Currentness
In addition to the requirements of title 10, ! the articles of incorporation shall set forth:

1. The names and residences of the applicants, together with arecital that each of themisaqualified elector of the municipality
or the county or, in the case of a corporation to be formed with the permission of the Arizona board of regents, a qualified
elector of this state.

2. The name of the corporation, which shall be “the industrial development authority of the of ) (the
blank spacesto befilled in with the name of the municipality or county). In the case of a corporation formed with the permission
of the Arizona board of regents the name shall be the “ Arizona research park authority”.

3. A recital that permission to organize the authority has been granted by resolution duly adopted by the governing body of the
municipality or county and the date of the adoption of such resolution.

4. The location of the principal office of the authority, which shall be in the municipality or county. In the case of a corporation
formed with the permission of the Arizona board of regents the principal office of the corporation shall be the principal office
of the Arizona board of regents.

Credits

Added as § 9-1153 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Amended by Laws 1972, Ch. 67, § 3, eff. April 24, 1972;
Laws 1979, Ch. 214, 8 3, eff. May 2, 1979; Laws 1983, Ch. 284, § 3, eff. April 27, 1983. Renumbered as § 35-703 by Laws
1986, Ch. 281, § 1, eff. May 2, 1986.

Footnotes

1 Section 10-001 et seq.

A.R. S 8§35-703, AZ ST § 35-703

Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legisature
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§ 35-704. Amendment to articles, AZ ST § 35-704

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 1. Incorporation (Refs & Annos)

A.R.S. § 35-704
§ 35-704. Amendment to articles

Currentness

The articles of incorporation may at any time and from time to time be amended to make any changes therein and add any
provisions thereto which might have been included in the certificate of incorporation in the first instance, provided that the
members of the board of directors of the authority first shall file with the authorizing governing body an application in writing
seeking permission to amend the articles of incorporation, specifying in such application the amendment proposed to be made.
Thegoverning body thereof shall consider such application and, if by resolutionit finds and determinesthat it iswise, expedient,
necessary or advisable that the proposed amendment be made, authorizes the same to be made, and approves the form of the
proposed amendment, then the persons making such application shall proceed to amend the articles in accordance with the

provisions of title 10. L

Credits

Added as § 9-1154 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Renumbered as § 35-704 by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, § 1,
eff. May 2, 1986.

Footnotes

1 Section 10-001 et seq.

A.R. S 8§35-704, AZ ST § 35-704

Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legidature
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§ 35-705. Board of directors, AZ ST § 35-705

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 1. Incorporation (Refs & Annos)

A.R.S. § 35-705
§ 35-705. Board of directors

Effective: September 21, 2006
Currentness

The authority shall have aboard of directorsin which all powers of the authority shall be vested and which shall consist of any
number of directors, not less than three nor more than nine, all of whom shall be duly qualified electors of the municipality or
county with respect to which the authority was formed. In the case of a corporation formed with the permission of the Arizona
board of regents the directors must be qualified electors of this state. The directors shall serve as such without compensation,
except that they shall be reimbursed for their actual expenses incurred in the performance of their duties in the same manner
asis provided for other state officers. No director shall be an officer or employee of the authorizing municipality or county.

All directors shall declare any conflict of interest as provided in title 38, chapter 3, article 8. L The directors shall be elected
by the governing body of the authorizing municipality or county, and they shall be so elected that they shall hold office for
overlapping terms. At thetime of the election of thefirst board of directors the governing body of the municipality or the county
shall divide the directors into three groups containing as nearly equal whole numbers as possible. Thefirst term of the directors
included in the first group shall be two years, the first term of the directors included in the second group shall be four years,
the first term of the directors included in the third group shall be six years, and thereafter the terms of all directors shall be six
years. The governing body may remove adirector at any time, with or without cause.

Credits

Added as § 9-1155 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Amended by Laws 1972, Ch. 67, § 4, eff. April 24, 1972,
Laws 1978, Ch. 100, § 3, eff. May 26, 1978; Laws 1983, Ch. 284, 8§ 4, eff. April 27, 1983. Renumbered as § 35-705 by Laws
1986, Ch. 281, § 1, eff. May 2, 1986; Laws 2006, Ch. 156, § 3.

Notes of Decisions (1)

Footnotes

1 Section 38-501 et seq.

A.R. S 8§35-705 AZ ST § 35-705

Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature

End of Document © 2013 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works.
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§ 35-706. Corporate powers, AZ ST § 35-706

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 1. Incorporation (Refs & Annos)

A.R.S. § 35-706
§ 35-706. Corporate powers
Effective: September 13, 2013

Currentness

A. In addition to the powers granted to an industrial development authority by law, the authority has the following powers,
together with all powers incidental or necessary for the performance of those powers:

1. To acquire, whether by purchase, exchange, gift, lease or otherwise establish, construct, improve, maintain, equip and furnish
one or more projects.

2. Toleaseto othersany or al of its projects, to charge and collect rent and to terminate any lease upon the failure of the lessee
to comply with any of the obligations of the lease.

3. To sell, exchange, donate and convey to others any or all of its projects or properties upon terms and conditions as its board
of directors may deem advisable, including the power to receive for any sale the note or notes of the purchaser of the project or
property, whenever its board of directors finds the action to further advance the interest of the corporation.

4. Toissueits bonds for the purpose of carrying out any of its powers.

5. To mortgage and pledge any or al of its projects and properties, whether owned or acquired, and to pledge the revenues,
proceeds and receipts or any portion of the revenues, proceeds and receipts from a project as security for the payment of the
principal of and interest on any bonds so issued and any agreements made in connection therewith.

6. To contract with and employ others to provide and to pay compensation for professional services and other services as the
board of directors deems necessary for the financing of projects and for the business of the corporation.

7. To refund outstanding obligations incurred by an enterprise to finance the cost of a project when the board of directors finds
that the refinancing isin the public interest.

8. To invest and reinvest funds under the control of the corporation and bond proceeds pending application thereof to the
purposes for which the bonds were issued, subject only to the provisions of any bond resolution, lease or other agreement
entered into by the board of directors.
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§ 35-706. Corporate powers, AZ ST § 35-706

9. To make secured or unsecured loans for the purpose of financing or refinancing the acquisition, construction, improvement,
equipping or operating of a project and to charge and collect interest on the loans and pledge the proceeds of 1oan agreements
as security for the payment of the principal and interest of any bonds, or designated issues of bonds, issued by the corporation,
and any agreements made in connection with the loan, whenever the board of directors finds the loans to further advance the
interest of the corporation or the public.

10. To acquire and hold obligations of any kind to carry out any of its purposes.

11. Subject to this section, to make loans to any bank, savings and loan institution, credit union or other mortgage lender,
whether organized or existing under the laws of this state, another state or the United States, which is qualified to do business
in this state, for the purpose of enabling the institutions to make loans to finance the acquisition, construction, improvement or
equipping of projects which are owner-occupied single family dwelling units to be occupied by persons of low and moderate
income, as determined by the corporation. The loans shall be fully secured in the same manner as deposits of public funds or
by loans secured by mortgages, deeds of trust or other security instruments guaranteed or insured by the United States, or any
instrumentality thereof, or by any private mortgage insurance or surety company which is approved by the federal home loan
mortgage corporation or the federal national mortgage association and whichislicensed to do businessin thisstate, if the private
mortgage insurance shall be in a dollar amount sufficient to satisfy the mortgage insurance requirements for loans eligible to
be purchased by the federal home loan mortgage corporation or the federal national mortgage association or any other agency
or department of the United States. The security shall not be necessary if the bonds issued to make the loans are guaranteed or
insured by an agency, department or instrumentality of the United States. Any bonds issued to make loans shall be ratable as
“A” or better by a nationally recognized bond rating agency.

12. Subject to this section, to purchase or enter into advance commitments to purchase loans or any loan interests secured by
mortgages, deeds of trust or other security instruments relating to projects which are owner-occupied single family dwelling
units from or with any bank, savings and loan institution, credit union or other mortgage lender, whether organized or existing
under the laws of this state, another state or the United States, which is qualified to do business in this state, on terms and
conditions as may be determined by the corporation. The purpose of the purchases shall be to finance directly or indirectly
the acquisition, construction, improvement or equipping of projects which are owner-occupied single family dwelling units to
be occupied by persons of low and moderate income. If the bonds issued to make purchases are not guaranteed or insured by
an agency, department or instrumentality of the United States or secured by aletter of credit, insurance policy, surety bond or
other credit facility from afinancia institution or a combination of such instruments, the purchased loans shall be guaranteed
or insured by the United States or any agency, department, or instrumentality thereof, or by any private mortgage insurance or
surety company which is approved by the federal home |oan mortgage corporation or the federal national mortgage association
or secured by aletter of credit, insurance policy, surety bond or other credit facility from afinancial institution or acombination
of such instruments. In the case of private mortgage insurance, the insurance shall bein adollar amount sufficient to satisfy the
mortgage insurance requirementsfor loans eligible to be purchased by the federal homeloan mortgage corporation or the federal
national mortgage association or any other agency or department of the United States. Any bonds issued to purchase loans
shall beratableas“A” or better by a nationally recognized bond rating agency. If the purchased |oans have not been originated
on behalf of the corporation to directly finance projects, the corporation shall require that the institution receiving proceeds
from the sale of the loans use the proceeds to make |oans to finance or refinance the acquisition, construction, improvement or
equipping of projects which are owner-occupied single family dwelling units to be occupied by persons of low and moderate
income, as determined by the corporation.

13. To €elect not to issue an amount of qualified mortgage revenue bonds which it may otherwise issue during any calendar
year and to issue instead mortgage credit certificates pursuant to a qualified mortgage credit certificate program as defined in
§ 35-901.
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14. Tomakeloansto any person or entity owning residential property or to makeloansto any bank, savings and loan association,
credit union or other mortgage lender, or to purchase or enter into advance commitments to purchase funding for the repair
or improvement of property related to residential or neighborhood improvement projects. An authority may issue its bonds
or incur other obligations to fund loans or purchases. An authority shall establish the provisions relating to bonds or other
obligations, including the security for the loans, and shall establish the guidelines for the approval, funding, purchasing and
security of the loans.

15. To enter into contracts and execute any agreements or instrument and do any other act necessary or appropriate to carry
out its purposes.

16. To exercise the powers granted by this chapter, including through the issuance of bonds, to provide financing or refinancing
for projects other than a project asdefined in § 35-701, paragraph 8, subdivision (a), item (v), located in whole or in part outside
this state, provided that the board of directors of the corporation has determined that the exercise of such powers will provide
a benefit within this state.

B. The corporation shall not have the power to operate any project as a business other than as lessor or sdller nor shall any
corporation make any |oans pursuant to subsection A, paragraph 9 of this section for projects which are owner-occupied single
family dwelling units except by utilizing asits contract agent a mortgage lender, whether organized or existing under the laws
of this state, another state or the United States, which is qualified to do businessin this state. Any project established pursuant
to subsection A, paragraph 14 of this section is not required to use a mortgage lender as its contract agent. The corporation
shall not permit any funds derived from the sale of its bonds to be used, loaned or provided for the acquisition of any facilities
of a public utility or public service corporation, except as provided in § 35-701. The corporation shall comply with title 38,

chapter 3, article 3.1. 1

C. A person's or family's eligibility for an owner-occupied single family dwelling unit financed pursuant to subsection A,
paragraph 11, 12 or 13 of this section shall be determined by considering the person's or family's income. Owner-occupied
single family dwelling units shall only be financed as provided in subsection A, paragraphs 11, 12 and 13 of this section unless
the owner-occupied single family dwelling units are located in an area designated pursuant to § 36-1479 as a slum or blighted
areaas defined in § 36-1471 by amunicipality having a population of more than two hundred fifty thousand persons according
to the most recent United States decennial census or a special census conducted in accordance with § 42-5033.

D. In the exercise of its powers authorized in this section with respect to projects which are owner-occupied single family
dwelling units to be occupied by persons of low and moderate income and financed pursuant to subsection A, paragraphs 11
and 12 of this section, the corporation shall establish, subject to approval by the governing body of the authorizing county
or municipality, standards and reguirements applicable to the purchase of loans or the making of loans to mortgage lenders,
including:

1. The eligibility of mortgage lenders, including the requirement that all mortgage lenders be approved as mortgagees by the
federal housing administration and the United States department of veterans affairs and be approved as sellers and servicers of
mortgage |oans by the federal national mortgage association or federal home |oan mortgage corporation.

2. The time within which mortgage lenders must make commitments and disbursements for mortgage loans.
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3. The character of residences to be financed by mortgage loans.

4. Thedligibility of persons of low and moderate income, including the requirement that no person of low and moderate income
may receive, more than once in athree year period, a mortgage loan financed directly or indirectly from the proceeds of bonds
issued by the corporation.

5. The terms and conditions of mortgage |oans to be acquired.

6. The amounts and types of insurance coverage required on residences, mortgages and bonds.

7. The representations and warranties of mortgage lenders confirming compliance with the standards and requirements.

8. Redtrictions as to interest rate and other terms of mortgage loans and the return realized on mortgage loans by mortgage
lenders.

9. The type and amount of collateral security to be provided to assure repayment of any loans from the corporation and to
assure repayment of bonds.

10. Assignment of the mortgage loans to a trustee acting on behalf of the corporation which shall be either a bank or trust
company doing business in this state, having an officially reported combined capital surplus, undivided profits and reserves
of not less than fifteen million dollars. Trustees must be approved to sell mortgages to and service mortgages for the federal
national mortgage association and the federal home loan mortgage corporation.

11. Any other matters related to the purchase of mortgage loans or the making of loans to mortgage lenders deemed relevant
by the corporation. In establishing standards and requirements, the corporation shall be guided by the following standards:

(8) The amount of mortgage monies proposed to be made available in the areais to be reasonably related to the demand for
mortgage monies.

(b) For projects of owner-occupied single family dwelling units to be occupied by persons of low and moderate income and
financed pursuant to subsection A, paragraphs 11 and 12 of this section, at least ten per cent of al mortgage monies proposed
to be made available by the corporations other than mortgage monies reserved for any period to finance mortgage loans on
residences located within an area designated as a slum or blighted area as defined in § 36-1471 shall be reserved for at least
a three month period for the financing of mortgage loans on manufactured housing unless the Arizona commerce authority
determines that any bonds issued to make loans will not be ratable as “A” or better by a nationally recognized bond rating
agency, in which case no such reservation is required. If all the mortgage monies reserved for manufactured housing are not
committed or used to make mortgage loans during this three month period, the mortgage lender may allocate the remaining
monies to finance mortgage loans on any single family dwelling unit.
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(c) Any departure from the level of commitment fees, origination fees or servicing fees normally charged by amortgage lender
isto bejustified in the context of the transaction.

(d) The costs, fees and expenditures associated with the issuance of bonds are to be reasonably related to the services provided.

E. Only corporations, the formations of which have been approved by the governing body of a county having a population of
more than seven per cent of the total state population computed according to the most recent United States decennial census or
by the governing body of amunicipality having a population of more than seven per cent of the total state population computed
according to the most recent United States decennial census, shall have the powers granted in subsection A, paragraphs 11, 12
and 13 of this section. Except as provided in 8 35-913, subsections E and F, acorporation shall not exercise the powers granted
in subsection A, paragraphs 11, 12 and 13 of this section outside of its jurisdiction. For the purposes of a refunding of any
mortgage revenue bond issued before January 1, 2000, the proceeds from the refunding may be used outside the jurisdiction
of the corporation issuing the refunding bonds except the corporation issuing the refunding bonds shall obtain the consent
from another corporation with powers granted in subsection A, paragraphs 11, 12 and 13 of this section if the proceeds of
the refunding are to be used within the jurisdiction of that corporation. For the purposes of exercising the powers granted in
subsection A, paragraphs 11, 12 and 13 of this section, the jurisdiction of a corporation formed on behalf of a county includes
all incorporated and unincorporated territory in the county.

F. A corporation may not permit proceeds of bonds or a qualified mortgage credit certificate program to be used to finance
projects which are owner-occupied single family dwelling units within the corporate limits of an incorporated city or town
unless the governing body of the city or town has approved the general location and character of the residences to be financed.
The corporation, prior to the issuance of bonds or mortgage credit certificates for that purpose, shall give written notice to the
governing body of each city or town in which it intends to permit proceeds of an issue of bonds or mortgage credit certificates
to be used to finance projects which are owner-occupied single family dwelling units and of the general |ocation and character
of the residences which may be financed. The governing body of the city or town shall be deemed to have given its approval
unlessit has denied approval by formal action of the governing body within twenty-one days after receiving the written notice
from the corporation. Approvals given or deemed to have been given with respect to use of proceeds of an issue of bonds or
mortgage credit certificates under this subsection may not be withdrawn. Denials may be withdrawn by the governing body of a
city or town and approval may be given thereafter if the corporation issuing the bonds or mortgage credit certificates approves
the withdrawal of the denial.

G. Two or more corporations with the powers granted by subsection E of this section may provide:

1. That a corporation, the formation of which was approved by the governing body of acounty or city, may exercise the powers
granted in subsection A, paragraphs 11, 12 and 13 of this section, with respect to owner-occupied single family dwelling units
located in all counties and cities which are parties to a cooperative agreement.

2. For the joint exercise by two or more corporations, each formed with the approval of a governing body executing the
cooperative agreement, of the powers granted in subsection A, paragraphs 11, 12 and 13 of this section, with respect to owner-
occupied single family dwelling units located in al counties and cities which are parties to the cooperative agreement. The
agreement shall specify the calendar year or yearsfor which it is effective, the means by which the agreement may be terminated
prior to the expiration of the calendar year or years and the aggregate principal amount of bonds which may be issued by
the designated corporation or corporations to exercise the powers pursuant to the agreement. The corporation or corporations
designated in the agreement to exercise the powers in the counties and cities which are parties to the agreement are the only
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corporation or corporations authorized and having jurisdiction to exercise the powers and to issue bonds to carry out the powers
in the counties and cities while the agreement is in effect. The combined jurisdictions of al the counties and cities which are
parties to the cooperative agreement are the jurisdictions of the corporation or corporations designated to exercise the powers
granted in subsection A, paragraphs 11, 12 and 13 of this section within the meaning of the mortgage subsidy bond tax act of
1980 (P.L. 96-499; 26 United States Code section 103A).

H. It shall not be aconflict of interest under title 38, chapter 3, article 8, and this chapter, 2 for any trustee or any mortgage lender
to enter into loan agreements with, or to sell mortgage loans to, the corporation as contemplated in subsection A, paragraphs
11, 12 and 13 of this section, act for or under contract with the corporation as a mortgage originator, servicer, paying agent or
depository, act as holder or dealer of bonds of the corporation or have as a director, officer or employee any member of the
board of directors of the corporation or any combination.

|. The department of economic security shall once in each calendar year on or before March 1 determine the median family
income of this state for the purposes of this chapter.

J. All areas in this state which are either designated pursuant to § 36-1479 as slum or blighted areas as defined in § 36-1471
or designated as pockets of poverty by the United States department of housing and urban development are designated as areas
of chronic economic distress within the meaning of the mortgage subsidy bond tax act of 1980 (P.L. 96-499; 26 United States
Code section 103A).

K. Any corporation that is described in subsection E of this section and that desiresto exercise the powers granted in subsection
A, paragraphs 11, 12 and 13 of this section, with respect to owner-occupied single family dwelling unitslocated in two or more
counties, may do soif the corporation, before i ssuing bonds or mortgage credit certificates for that purpose, gives written notice
to the governing bodies of the other counties and their respective corporations, if any, of its intent to permit the proceeds of
an issue of bonds or mortgage credit certificates to finance projects within its jurisdiction which are owner-occupied single
family dwelling units. The governing body of a county and its respective corporation, if any, which have been given notice are
deemed to have approved the use of the proceeds or mortgage credit certificates for owner-occupied single family dwelling
units within their jurisdiction and approved the use of any state ceiling, as defined in § 35-901, unless approval is denied by
formal action of the governing body or the board of directors of the corporation, if any, within twenty-one days after receiving
written notice from the corporation. Absent adenial of approval as stated in this subsection, a cooperative agreement providing
for the exercise of the powers granted in subsection A, paragraphs 11, 12 and 13 of this section is deemed to exist among the
applicable counties or corporations. Approvals given or deemed to have been given with respect to the matters stated in this
subsection may not be withdrawn. Denials by the governing body of a county apply only to the unincorporated areas of the
county. Denials may be withdrawn by the governing body of a county and approval may be given thereafter if the corporation
issuing the bonds or mortgage credit certificates approves the withdrawal of the denial. Mortgage credit certificates and bond
proceeds issued pursuant to this subsection shall be available on an equitable basis within each of the participating counties.

Credits

Added as § 9-1156 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Amended by Laws 1972, Ch. 67, 8 5, eff. April 24, 1972;
Laws 1975, Ch. 99, § 2, eff. May 22, 1975; Laws 1978, Ch. 100, § 4, eff. May 26, 1978; Laws 1979, Ch. 214, § 4, eff. May
2,1979; Laws 1981, Ch. 303, § 2, eff. April 30, 1981. Renumbered as § 35-706 and amended by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, 8§ 1,
6, eff. May 2, 1986. Amended by Laws 1988, Ch. 265, § 1, eff. June 30, 1988; Laws 1989, Ch. 155, § 1; Laws 1990, Ch. 294,
8 1; Laws 1992, Ch. 275, § 4; Laws 1994, Ch. 216, § 2; Laws 1997, Ch. 132, § 2; Laws 1998, Ch. 1, § 97, eff. Jan. 1, 1999;
Laws 1999, Ch. 334, 8§ 1, €ff. Jan. 1, 2000; Laws 2003, Ch. 246, § 4; Laws 2006, Ch. 156, § 4; Laws 2012, Ch. 170, § 12;
Laws 2013, Ch. 130, § 1.
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Notes of Decisions (5)

Footnotes

1 Section 38-431 et seq.

2 Sections 38-501 et seq., 35-701 et seq.

A.R. S 8§35-706, AZ ST § 35-706

Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legidature
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Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 1. Incorporation (Refs & Annos)

A.R.S. § 35-707
§ 35-707. Assumption of mortgage loans
Currentness
Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law, a corporation may prohibit the assumption of any single family mortgage
loan purchased by it in accordance with the provisions of § 35-706 and require prepayment of the loan if the person proposing

to assume the loan or the single family dwelling unit to which the loan relates fails to meet such €eligibility criteriarelating to
mortgagors or single family dwelling units, respectively, as may be established by the corporation as the purchaser of such |oan.

Credits
Added as § 9-1157 by Laws 1982, Ch. 218, § 1, eff. April 22, 1982. Renumbered as § 35-707 and amended by Laws 1986, Ch.

281, 881, 7, eff. May 2, 1986. Amended by Laws 1988, Ch. 265, § 2, eff. June 30, 1988.

A.R. S §35-707, AZ ST § 35-707
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature
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Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 1. Incorporation (Refs & Annos)

A.R.S. § 35-708
§ 35-708. Financing certain owner-occupied single family dwellings; exception
Currentness
A. For purposes of § 35-701, paragraph 7, in areas other than a slum or blighted area, the authority undertaking the bond issue

shall set aside for sixty days thirty per cent of the mortgages for owner-occupied single family dwelling units for persons and
families whose income is below the median family income of this state.

B. This section does not apply to projects described in § 35-701, paragraph 8, subdivision (&), item (vi) or programs established
pursuant to § 35-706, subsection A, paragraph 14.

Credits
Added as § 9-1158 by Laws 1984, Ch. 236, § 2. Renumbered as § 35-708 and amended by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, 8§ 1, 8, €ff.
May 2, 1986. Amended by Laws 1994, Ch. 216, § 3; Laws 1997, Ch. 132, § 3; Laws 2003, Ch. 246, § 5.

A.R. S 8§35-708, AZ ST § 35-708
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legisature
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§ 35-721. Bonds of the corporation, AZ ST § 35-721

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 2. Bonds

A.R.S. § 35-721
§ 35-721. Bonds of the corporation

Effective: September 21, 2006
Currentness

A. All principal and interest of bonds issued by the corporation shall be payable solely out of the revenues, proceeds and
receipts derived from the corporation's sale of property, loan repayments or lease rentals, or out of the proceeds of bondsissued
hereunder, or of any revenues, proceeds and receipts thereof as shall be specified in the proceedings of the board of directors
under which the bonds shall be authorized to be issued.

B. The proceedings under which such bonds are to be issued shall require the approval of the governing body of each issuance
of bonds.

C. The bonds prescribed by subsection A may:

1. Be executed and delivered by the corporation at any time and from time to time.

2. Bein such form and denominations and of such tenor and maturities.

3. Beinregistered or bearer form either as to principal or interest or both.

4. Be payable in such installments and at such time or times not exceeding forty years from the date thereof.

5. Be payable at such place or places within or without the state of Arizona.

6. Bear interest at such rate or rates, payable at such time or times and at such place or places and evidenced in such manner.

7. Be executed by such officers of the corporation and in such manner, and may contain such provisions not inconsistent
herewith, all as shall be provided in the proceedings of the board of directors whereunder the bonds are authorized to be issued.

D. If deemed advisable by the board of directors, there may be retained in the proceedings under which any bonds of the
corporation are authorized to be issued an option to redeem all or any part thereof as may be specified in such proceedings, at
such price or prices and after such notice or notices and on such terms and conditions as may be set forth in such proceedings
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§ 35-721. Bonds of the corporation, AZ ST § 35-721

and as may be briefly recited on the face of the bonds, but nothing in this article shall be construed to confer on the corporation
any right or option to redeem any bonds except as may be provided in the proceedings under which they shall be issued.

E. Any bonds of the corporation may be sold at public or private salein such manner and from timeto time as may be determined
by the board of directors of the corporation to be most advantageous, and the corporation may pay al expenses, premiums and
commissionswhichitsboard of directors may deem necessary or advantageousin connection with theissuance thereof. I ssuance
by the corporation of one or more series of bonds for one or more purposes shall not preclude it from issuing other bonds in
connection with the same project or any other project, but the proceedings whereunder any subsequent bonds may be issued
shall recognize and protect any prior pledge or mortgage made for any prior issue of bonds. Any bonds of the corporation at any
time outstanding may at any time and from time to time be refunded by the corporation by the issuance of its refunding bonds
in such amount as the board of directors may deem necessary but not exceeding an amount sufficient to refund the principal
of the bonds so to be refunded, together with any unpaid interest thereon and any premiums and commissions necessary to be
paid in connection therewith. Any such refunding may be effected whether the bonds to be refunded shall have then matured
or shall thereafter mature, either by sale of the refunding bonds and the application of the proceeds thereof for the payment
of the bonds to be refunded thereby, or by the exchange of the refunding bonds for the bonds to be refunded thereby with the
consent of the holders of the bonds so to be refunded, and regardless of whether or not the bonds to be refunded were issued
in connection with the same projects or separate projects, and regardless of whether or not the bonds proposed to be refunded
shall be payable at the same date or different dates or shall be due serially or otherwise. All such bonds and the interest coupons
applicable thereto are hereby made and shall be construed to be negotiable instruments.

F. The corporation shall notify the attorney general of its intention to issue bonds. Such notification shall adequately describe
the project. The attorney general shall inform the corporation within ten daysiif in his opinion the project sought to be financed
does not come within the purview of this chapter. If after ten daysthe attorney general has not issued an opinion that the project
does not so conform, the corporation may issue such bonds. If the attorney general's negative opinion isissued within ten days,
such bonds shall not beissued. No action shall be brought questioning the legality of any contract, lease, mortgage, proceedings
or the issuance of bonds hereunder from and after ninety calendar days from the date the bonds are authorized to be issued
by the governing body.

Credits

Added as § 9-1171 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Amended by Laws 1972, Ch. 67, § 6, eff. April 24,
1972; Laws 1978, Ch. 100, § 5, eff. May 26, 1978. Renumbered as § 35-721 by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, § 1, eff. May 2, 1986.
Amended by Laws 2006, Ch. 156, § 5.

Notes of Decisions (3)

A.R.S.835-721, AZ ST §35-721
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature
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§ 35-722. Approval by elected official if required by federal law, AZ ST § 35-722

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 2. Bonds

A.R.S. § 35-722
§ 35-722. Approval by elected official if required by federal law

Currentness

The governor, the attorney general, or the state treasurer if designated by the governor, may approve the issuance of any bonds
issued by a corporation formed with the permission of the Arizona board of regents for purposes of complying with federal
laws requiring approval by an applicable elected representative.

Credits
Added as § 9-1171.01 by Laws 1983, Ch. 284, § 5, eff. April 27, 1983. Renumbered as § 35-722 by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, §
1, eff. May 2, 1986.

A.R.S.835-722, AZ ST § 35-722
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature
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§ 35-723. Prohibition on state debt, AZ ST § 35-723

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 2. Bonds

A.R.S. § 35-723
§ 35-723. Prohibition on state debt

Currentness

This chapter shall not be construed to authorize the incurrence of a debt by this state within the meaning of any constitutional
provision or to permit the pledging of student fees, charges or tuition to the payment of any bondsissued pursuant to this chapter.

Credits
Added as § 9-1171.02 by Laws 1983, Ch. 284, § 5, eff. April 27, 1983. Renumbered as § 35-723 by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, §
1, eff. May 2, 1986.

A.R. S 835-723, AZ ST §35-723
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legisature
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§ 35-724. Security for bonds, AZ ST § 35-724

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 2. Bonds

A.R.S. § 35-724
§ 35-724. Security for bonds

Currentness

The principal of and interest on any bonds issued by the corporation shall be secured by a pledge of the revenues, proceeds and
receipts or any portion thereof out of which the principal and interest are made payable, and may be secured by a mortgage
covering al or any part of the projects and properties from which the revenues, proceeds or receipts so pledged may be derived,
including any enlargements of and additionsto any such projects and propertiesthereafter made. The resolution under which the
bonds are authorized to beissued and any such mortgage may contain any agreements and provisionsrespecting the maintenance
of the projects and properties covered thereby, thefixing and collection of rentsfor any portionsthereof |eased by the corporation
to others, the fixing and collection of proceeds from the sale of any projects and properties by the corporation to others, the
creation and maintenance of special funds from such revenues and the rights and remedies available in the event of default,
all as the board of directors shall deem advisable and not in conflict with the provisions of this article. Each pledge, lease,
agreement and mortgage made by the corporation for the benefit or security of any of the bonds of the corporation shall continue
effective until the principal of and interest on the bonds for the benefit of which the same were made have been fully paid.
In the event of default in such payment or in any agreements of the corporation made as a part of the contract under which
the bonds were issued, whether contained in the proceedings authorizing the bonds or in any mortgage executed as security
therefor, may be enforced by mandamus, the appointment of a receiver, or by foreclosure of any such mortgage, or any one
or more of such remedies.

Credits
Added as § 9-1172 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Amended by Laws 1972, Ch. 67, § 7, eff. April 24, 1972,
Laws 1978, Ch. 100, § 6, eff. May 26, 1978. Renumbered as § 35-724 by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, § 1, eff. May 2, 1986.

A.R.S.835-724, AZ ST § 35-724
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature
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§ 35-725. Bonds made legal investments, AZ ST § 35-725

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 2. Bonds

A.R.S. § 35-725
§ 35-725. Bonds made legal investments
Currentness

Bonds issued under the provisions of this chapter shall be legal investments for al banks, trust companies and insurance
companies organized and operating under the laws of this state.

Credits
Added as § 9-1173 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Renumbered as § 35-725 by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, § 1,

eff. May 2, 1986.

A.R. S 835725, AZ ST §35-725
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legisature
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§ 35-726. Approval of general plan before issuing bonds; fee; definition, AZ ST § 35-726

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 2. Bonds

A.R.S. § 35-726
§ 35-726. Approval of general plan before issuing bonds; fee; definition

Effective: September 13, 2013
Currentness

A. Bonds shall not be issued by a corporation for the purpose of financing single family dwelling units pursuant to 8 35-706,
subsection A, paragraph 11 or 12 without approval of a genera plan by its governing body. The corporation shall submit a
genera plan for each respective series of bonds to its governing body. The general plan shall briefly describe:

1. The amount of the proposed bonds.

2. The maximum term of the bonds.

3. The maximum interest rate on the bonds.

4. The need for the bond issue.

5. The terms and conditions for originating or purchasing mortgage loans or making loans to lenders.

6. The areain which the single family dwelling units to be financed may be located.

7. The proposed fees, chargesand expendituresto bepaid for originators, servicers, trustees, custodians, mortgage administrators
and others.

8. All insurance requirements with respect to mortgage loans, mortgaged property, mortgagors, originators, servicers and
trustees.

9. The anticipated date of issuance of the bonds.

B. The governing body shall review genera plans submitted by corporations pursuant to subsection A of this section. In
reviewing the plans the governing body shall consider:
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§ 35-726. Approval of general plan before issuing bonds; fee; definition, AZ ST § 35-726

1. Whether the amount of the mortgage monies proposed to be made available is reasonably related to the demand for the
mortgage monies.

2. Whether the terms of the general plan arejustifiable in the context of the transaction and in the context of similar transactions.

3. Whether the fees, costs and expenditures as set forth in the general plan are reasonably related to the services provided.

4. For projects of owner-occupied single family dwelling units to be occupied by persons of low and moderate income and
financed pursuant to § 35-706, subsection A, paragraphs 11 and 12, whether the proposed mortgage moniesto be made available
will fulfill a public purpose by providing housing for persons of low and moderate income or by encouraging single family
developmentsin all participating jurisdictions, including such jurisdictions' slum or blighted areas as defined in § 36-1471.

C. The governing body shall approve or disapprove the general plan not later than thirty days after receipt of the plan. If the
governing body does not act upon the general plan within thirty days from the date of receipt, the general plan shall be deemed
approved. If ageneral plan is approved, the corporation may issue the series of bonds covered by the general plan with atotal
principal amount, maximum term and maximum interest rate no greater than that which is set forth in the general plan. The
origination and servicing fees pertaining to mortgage loans to be financed in accordance with the general plan shall not exceed
those proposed in the general plan. The corporation may vary other itemsin the general plan upon afinding that the variationis
minor and that the variations will not impair the security for the bonds or substantially increase the cost of financing the single
family dwelling units and the findings of the corporation shall be conclusive.

D. The governing body may charge any corporation submitting a general plan for review afee of not to exceed ten thousand
dollars together with reimbursement of its actual costs and expensesincurred in reviewing the general plan.

E. Except for a corporation approved by agoverning body of acounty or amunicipality having a population of more than seven
per cent of the total state population computed according to the most recent United States decennia census, a corporation shall
not issue bonds, other than refunding bonds the proceeds of which are used exclusively to refund aprior bond issue, to financea
multifamily residential rental project, sanitarium, clinic, medical hotel, rest home, nursing home, skilled nursing facility or life
carefacility as prescribed in § 20-1801, unless the department approves the project. The department, with or without a hearing,
shall review the project and consider at |east the following factors:

1. The demand for and feasihility of the project in the area set forth in the application to the corporation.

2. The terms and conditions of the proposed bonds.

3. The proposed use of bond proceeds.

4. The benefit to the public if the project provides rental housing for persons of low and moderate income or encourages rental
housing in slum or blighted areas as defined in § 36-1471.
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§ 35-726. Approval of general plan before issuing bonds; fee; definition, AZ ST § 35-726

5. If the project consists of a nursing home, or a life care facility as prescribed in § 20-1801, the benefit to the public of the
project, including the proposed rent, fees and other charges of the project in relation to the level of services to be offered.

F. Subsection E of this section does not apply to bonds issued to finance a sanitarium, clinic, medical hotel, rest home, nursing
home, skilled nursing facility, or life care facility as prescribed in § 20-1801, if the facility isto be owned and operated by this
state or a political subdivision or agency of this state.

G. Except for a corporation that is exempt under subsection E of this section, the department with or without a hearing shall
approve or disapprove the project not later than thirty days after receipt of the request for approval. If the project is approved
the corporation may issue the bonds described in the approval request with the total principal amount, maximum term and
maximum interest rate no greater than as set forth in the request. The department shall charge each applicant submitting a
project approval request pursuant to this subsection a fee of not to exceed five thousand dollars together with reimbursement
of itsactual costs and expensesincurred in reviewing the project. Beginning on October 1, 2002, the department shall remit the
feesto the state treasurer for deposit in the Arizona department of housing program fund established by § 41-3957.

H. For the purposes of this section, “department” means the Arizona department of housing.

Credits

Added as § 9-1174 by Laws 1979, Ch. 214, § 5, eff. May 2, 1979. Amended by Laws 1981, Ch. 303, § 3, eff. April 30, 1981,
Laws 1984, Ch. 239, § 2, eff. Aug. 3, 1984, retroactively effective to July 1, 1984. Renumbered as § 35-726 and amended by
Laws 1986, Ch. 281, 88 1, 9, eff. May 2, 1986. Amended by Laws 1988, Ch. 265, § 3, eff. June 30, 1988; Laws 1992, Ch.
275, 8 5; Laws 1994, Ch. 216, § 4; Laws 1997, Ch. 132, § 4; Laws 2001, Ch. 22, § 1, ff. Jan. 1, 2002; Laws 2003, Ch. 246,
§ 6; Laws 2013, Ch. 130, § 2.

Notes of Decisions (3)

A.R. S 8§35-726, AZ ST § 35-726
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature
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8§ 35-727. Repealed by Laws 1988, Ch. 265, § 4, eff. June 30, 1988, AZ ST 8§ 35-727

et KeyCite Red Flag - Severe Negative Treatment

KeyCite Red Flag Negative Treatment  § 35-727. Repealed by Laws 1988, Ch. 265, § 4, eff. June 30, 1988

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 2. Bonds

A.R.S. § 35-727
§ 35-727. Repealed by Laws 1988, Ch. 265, § 4, eff. June 30, 1988

Currentness

A.R.S. 835727, AZ ST § 35-727
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature
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§ 35-728. Additional powers; allocating low-income housing tax..., AZ ST § 35-728

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 2. Bonds

A.R.S. § 35-728
§ 35-728. Additional powers; allocating low-income housing tax credits; report; definition

Effective: September 21, 2006
Currentness

A. In addition to the other powers granted to the department, the department may:

1. Adopt rules for the conduct of its business and its review of the activities described in this article.

2. Contract with, retain or designate financia consultants, attorneys and such other consultants and independent contractors as
it determines necessary or appropriate to carry out the purposes of this article.

3. Undertake and carry out or authorize the completion of studies and analyses of housing conditions and needs within this
state relevant to the purposes of this section to the extent not otherwise undertaken by other departments or agencies of this
state satisfactory for such purpose.

B. Thedepartment isdesignated the housing credit agency for this state for purposes of § 42 of the United Statesinternal revenue

code! and is responsible for alocating the federal low-income housing tax credits available to this state. After reviewing
applications the department may assess the applicant a reasonable fee in connection with processing the applications and
monitoring compliance with the program. Beginning on October 1, 2002, the department shall remit thefeesto the state treasurer
for deposit in the Arizona department of housing program fund established by § 41-3957.

C. For the activities authorized in this section, the department shall notify a city, town, county or tribal government that a
multifamily rental project isplanned for itsjurisdiction and, before proceeding, shall request and obtain written consent from the
governing body of the city, town, county or tribal government or an official authorized by the governing body of the city, town,
county or tribal government. The department shall not interfere with or attempt to override the local jurisdiction's planning,
zoning or land use regulations. This subsection shall not be interpreted to interfere in any way with the requirements of state
or federal fair housing laws.

D. The department shall provide to the governor, the president of the senate, the speaker of the house of representatives and
the auditor general not later than September 30 of each year areport of the activities of the department during the preceding
fiscal year. The report shall include information on the following matters:

1. An assessment of the number and geographic location of housing units or developments financed or otherwise assisted by
the department or by the corporations reporting to the department.
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§ 35-728. Additional powers; allocating low-income housing tax..., AZ ST § 35-728

2. An assessment of the assistance in obtaining housing provided by the department or by the corporations reporting to the
department to persons of low or moderate income and to other persons.

3. An assessment of the approximate amount of money used in the housing industry as aresult of the department's activities.

E. For the purposes of this section, “department” means the Arizona department of housing.

Credits

Added as § 9-1176 by Laws 1983, Ch. 326, § 4. Amended by Laws 1984, Ch. 239, § 3, eff. Aug. 3, 1984, retroactively effective
to July 1, 1984. Renumbered as § 35-728 and amended by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, 88 1, 11, eff. May 2, 1986. Amended by Laws
1988, Ch. 265, 8§ 5, eff. June 30, 1988; Laws 2001, Ch. 22, § 2, eff. Jan. 1, 2002; Laws 2006, Ch. 156, § 6.

Footnotes

1 Internal Revenue Code sections may be found in Title 26 of U.S.C.A.

A.R.S. §35-728, AZ ST § 35-728

Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature
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§ 35-729. Exemption from procurement code, AZ ST § 35-729

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 2. Bonds

A.R.S. § 35-729
§ 35-729. Exemption from procurement code

Effective: August 2, 2012
Currentness

For purposes of thisarticle and chapter 7 of thistitle, L the followi ng are exempt from title 41, chapter 23 2 or other restrictions
on the procedure for entering into contracts:

1. The Arizona commerce authority.
2. The Arizona department of housing.

Credits

Added as § 9-1177 by Laws 1981, Ch. 303, § 4, eff. April 30, 1981. Renumbered as § 35-729 and amended by Laws 1986, Ch.
281, 88 1, 12, eff. May 2, 1986. Amended by Laws 1988, Ch. 265, § 6, eff. June 30, 1988; Laws 2001, Ch. 22, § 3, &ff. Jan.
1, 2002; Laws 2006, Ch. 156, § 7; Laws 2012, Ch. 170, § 13.

Footnotes

1 Section 35-901 et seq.

2 Section 41-2501 et seq.

A.R.S. 835729, AZ ST § 35-729

Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature

End of Document © 2013 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works.
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§ 35-741. Exemption from taxation, AZ ST § 35-741

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 3. Tax Exemption and Liability

A.R.S. § 35-741
§ 35-741. Exemption from taxation

Currentness

The corporation and its income and all bonds issued by it and the income therefrom shall be exempt from al taxation in this
state, except that property of the corporation shall be subject to al applicable ad valorem taxes. If such property isleased, such
ad valorem taxes shall be charged to the lessee as fully as if the lessee were the owner of such leased property except that no
ad valorem tax shall be imposed upon any property of the corporation which is leased to a person qualified for exemption from
such taxes by article 9, section 2, Constitution of Arizona and no charge for such atax shall be made to any such lessee.

Credits
Added as § 9-1181 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Amended by Laws 1972, Ch. 67, § 8, eff. April 24, 1972;
Laws 1974, Ch. 128, § 2, eff. May 9, 1974. Renumbered as § 35-741 by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, § 1, eff. May 2, 1986.

Notes of Decisions (1)

A.R. S 835741, AZ ST § 35-741
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature
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§ 35-742. Municipality or county not liable, AZ ST § 35-742

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 3. Tax Exemption and Liability

A.R.S. § 35-742
§ 35-742. Municipality or county not liable

Currentness

The municipality or the county shall not in any event beliable for the payment of the principal of or interest on any bonds of the
corporation, formed thereby or for the performance of any pledge, mortgage, obligation or agreement of any kind whatsoever
which may be undertaken by the corporation, and none of the bonds of the corporation or any of its agreements or obligations
shall be construed to constitute an indebtedness of the municipality or county within the meaning of any constitutional or
statutory provision whatsoever.

Credits
Added as § 9-1182 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Renumbered as § 35-742 by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, § 1,

eff. May 2, 1986.

A.R. S. 835-742, AZ ST § 35-742
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legidature
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§ 35-743. Liability insurance, AZ ST § 35-743

KeyCite Yellow Flag - Negative Treatment
Proposed Legislation

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 3. Tax Exemption and Liability

A.RS. §35-743
§ 35-743. Liability insurance
Currentness
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the municipality or county in which anindustrial development authority corporation
has been organized may expend public monies to procure liability insurance covering the corporation and its board directors,
members, officers, agents and employees, or may include the corporation and its board directors, members, officers, agents and

employees in a self-insurance program in the same manner and to the same extent that the municipality or county is authorized
by law to do so for its officers, agents and employees.

Credits
Added by Laws 1991, Ch. 279, § 1.

A.R. S 8§35-743, AZ ST § 35-743
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature
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§ 35-751. Earnings of the corporation and exemption from restrictions, AZ ST § 35-751

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 4. Corporations

A.R.S. § 35-751
§ 35-751. Earnings of the corporation and exemption from restrictions

Currentness

A. The corporation shall be a nonprofit corporation, and no part of its net earnings remaining after payment of its expenses
shall inure to the benefit of any individual, firm or corporation.

B. A project shall be exempt from any requirement of competitive bidding or other restrictions imposed on the procedure for
the financing of public improvements or the award of contracts for the construction of public improvements and shall also be
exempt from any restrictions imposed on municipalities, counties or political subdivisions relating to the leasing, sale or other
disposition of property or funds.

Credits
Added as § 9-1186 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Amended by Laws 1972, Ch. 67, § 9, eff. April 24, 1972.
Renumbered as § 35-751 by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, § 1, eff. May 2, 1986.

A.R. S 835751, AZ ST § 35-751
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature
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§ 35-752. Dissolution of corporation and vesting of title in..., AZ ST § 35-752

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 4. Corporations

A.R.S. § 35-752
§ 35-752. Dissolution of corporation and vesting of title in municipality or county

Currentness

Whenever the board of directors of the corporation, by resolution, determines that the purposes for which the corporation was
formed have been substantially complied with and that all bonds and mortgage credit certificates theretofore issued and all
obligations theretofore incurred by the corporation have been fully paid or discharged, the members of the board of directors

of the corporation shall thereupon dissolve the corporation in accordance with the provisions of title 10 1 and all funds held by
the corporation and title to its property shall vest in the municipality or county with respect to which it was organized.

Credits
Added as § 9-1187 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Amended by Laws 1972, Ch. 67, § 10, eff. April 24, 1972.
Renumbered as § 35-752 by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, § 1, eff. May 2, 1986. Amended by Laws 1992, Ch. 275, § 6.

Footnotes

1 Section 10-001 et seq.

A.R. S 835752, AZ ST § 35-752

Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legisature
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§ 35-753. Recordation of documents, AZ ST § 35-753

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 4. Corporations

AR.S. § 35753
§ 35-753. Recordation of documents

Currentness

The articles of incorporation of the corporation and the certificate of dissolution of the corporation shall be filed for record
with the corporation commission.

Credits
Added as § 9-1188 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Amended by Laws 1972, Ch. 67, 8 11, eff. April 24, 1972.
Renumbered as § 35-753 by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, § 1, eff. May 2, 1986.

A.R. S 835-753, AZ ST § 35-753
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legisature
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§ 35-754. Chapter cumulative; no notice required, AZ ST § 35-754

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 4. Corporations

AR.S.§ 35754
§ 35-754. Chapter cumulative; no notice required

Currentness

Neither this chapter nor anything herein contained shall be construed as a restriction or limitation upon any powers which
the corporation otherwise might have under any laws of this state, but shall be construed as cumulative of any such powers.

Except as provided in title 44, chapter 12, article 4, L no proceedings, notice or approval shall be required for the organization
of the corporation or the issuance of any bonds or any instrument as security therefor, except as is provided in this chapter,
any other law to the contrary notwithstanding, provided that nothing in this chapter shall be construed to deprive the state and
its governmental subdivisions of their respective police powers over any properties of the corporation, or to impair any power
thereover of any official or agency of the state and its governmental subdivisions which may be otherwise provided by law.

Credits
Added as § 9-1189 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Amended by Laws 1978, Ch. 186, § 1. Renumbered as
8§ 35-754 by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, § 1, eff. May 2, 1986.

Footnotes

1 Section 44-1841 et seq.

A.R.S. 835754, AZ ST §35-754

Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature
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§ 35-761. Cooperation with public bodies, AZ ST § 35-761

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 5. Cooperation with Governmental Bodies

A.R.S. § 35-761
§ 35-761. Cooperation with public bodies
Currentness
For the purposes of carrying out the intent and provisions of this chapter, the governing body of a municipality or county may

enter into cooperative agreements with governing bodies of any other municipality or county or with a state or any department
or agency thereof, or with the United States or with any agency, department, or instrumentality thereof.

Credits
Added as § 9-1196 by Laws 1968, Ch. 204, § 2, eff. March 27, 1968. Renumbered as § 35-761 by Laws 1986, Ch. 281, § 1,
eff. May 2, 1986.

A.R.S. 835761, AZ ST § 35-761
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature
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§ 35-771. Definitions, AZ ST § 35-771

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 6. Student Loan Bond Programs (Refs & Annos)

AR.S. §35-771
§ 35-771. Definitions
Effective: September 13, 2013

Currentness

In this article, unless the context otherwise requires:

1. “Educational institution” means a university under the jurisdiction of the Arizona board of regents, a community collegein
this state, an accredited private postsecondary institution eligible under title IV of the higher education act of 1965 licensed by
this state and any other accredited institution eligible under title 1V of the higher education act of 1965 offering postsecondary
education or courses, whether located within or outside of the boundaries of this state, that awards any eligible degree.

2. “Eligible degree” means any postsecondary degree or program.

3. “Eligible lender” means an entity affiliated or contracting with a corporation or a qualified educational ingtitution that may
make student loans to eligible students or to the parents of eligible students or a nonprofit entity that is exempt from taxation

under section 501(c)(3) of theinternal revenue code! and that makes student loans.

4. “Eligible student” means any student attending any qualified educational institution and any resident of this state attending
any educational institution.

5. “Parent” means a student's mother, father, adoptive parent, grandparent or guardian or any person with the duty and authority
to make important decisionsin matters having a permanent effect on the life and development of a student and to be concerned
about the student's general welfare.

6. “Qualified educational institution” means an educational institution, as defined in paragraph 1 of this section, with acampus
and facilities located in this state that offers one or more éligible degrees.

7. " State program representative” means the governor or the governor's designee.

8. “Student loan” means aloan to or for the benefit of an eligible student for the purpose of financing all or apart of the eligible
student's cost of attending an educational institution in pursuit of an eligible degree or refinancing any such loan previously
made.
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§ 35-771. Definitions, AZ ST § 35-771

Credits
Added by Laws 2013, Ch. 228, § 1.

Footnotes

1 Internal Revenue Code sections may be found in Title 26 of U.S.C.A.

A.R. S 835771, AZ ST §35-771

Current through the First Regular and First Specia Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature
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§ 35-772. Student loan bonds, AZ ST § 35-772

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 6. Student Loan Bond Programs (Refs & Annos)

A.R.S. § 35-772
§ 35-772. Student loan bonds
Effective: September 13, 2013

Currentness

A. In addition to any powers granted under this chapter, a corporation is authorized to issue bonds in order to finance student
loans made in astudent |oan program established pursuant to thisarticle and to i ssue refunding bonds to refund bonds previously
issued under this article as provided in this chapter.

B. A corporation, in furtherance of a student |oan program, shall have the power to:

1. Determinethe nature of student loan programsfor eligible students or their parents for which the corporation will issue bonds.

2. Enter into contracts for any or al student loan program purposes.

3. Enter into contracts for the origination, administration or servicing of student loans.

4. Designate a particular qualified educational institution or institutions, or eligible lender or lenders, as its agent for
accomplishing its purposes.

5. Make loans with proceeds of the sale of its bonds to any eligible student, any parent of an eligible student, any educational
institution or any eligible lender in accordance with an agreement between the corporation and other parties. The agreements
may provide that the proceeds of any loan made to an educational institution or eligible lender shall be used by the educational
institution or eligible lender to purchase, originate or make loans only to or for the benefit of eigible students attending
designated qualified educational institutions, or to the parents of those students.

6. Acquire, purchase and make commitments to purchase student loans with proceeds of the sale of its bonds from any
educational institution or eligible lender in accordance with an agreement between the corporation and other parties. The
agreement may provide that the student loans be made only to or for the benefit of eligible students attending designated
educational institutions, or to the parents of those students.

7. Receive and accept from any public agency or any other source loans, grants, guarantees or insurance with respect to student
loans and student loan programs.
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§ 35-772. Student loan bonds, AZ ST § 35-772

8. Establish guidelines governing the actions of qualified educational institutions and eligible lenders participating in the
corporation's student loan program.

9. Perform any actsincidental to and that it deems necessary to execute the powers listed in this article.

C. A corporation shall not issue bonds to finance student loans pursuant to this article unless the corporation has approved
a plan for the student loan program to be financed by the bonds and has submitted the plan for review and approva by the
state program representative pursuant to § 35-773. A corporation shall follow the plan as submitted and approved except for
insubstantial deviations determined by the corporation's board of directors to be necessary for the successful issuance of the
bonds and establishment and operation of the program. The plan submitted to the state program representative must establish
at least the following:

1. The criteriafor participation in the program by educational institutions, eligible lenders and eligible students.
2. The general terms of the student loans and the program.
3. Any other information reasonably requested by the state program representative.

D. A corporation that has approved a plan for issuing student loan bonds and a student loan program to be financed by the bonds
under this article is a student loan corporation for the purposes of chapter 7 of thistitle. L

Credits
Added by Laws 2013, Ch. 228, § 1.

Footnotes

1 Section 35-901 et seq.

A.R.S.835-772, AZ ST § 35-772

Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legislature
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§ 35-773. State program; representative, AZ ST § 35-773

Arizona Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 35. Public Finances
Chapter 5. Industrial Development Financing (Refs & Annos)
Article 6. Student Loan Bond Programs (Refs & Annos)

ARS. §35-773
§ 35-773. State program; representative

Effective: September 13, 2013
Currentness

A. All industrial development authorities are authorized to exercise powers and issue revenue bonds to finance student loansin
accordance with this chapter so that the state's student loan program is available for eligible students at educational institutions
as a student loan program of general application in this state and approved by this state.

B. The state program representative shall approve or disapprove a plan submitted under 8 35-772, with or without ahearing, not
later than thirty days after receipt of the plan and shall promptly notify the corporation that submitted the plan of the approval
or disapproval. If the state program representative does not notify the corporation that submitted the plan of the approval or
disapproval within forty-five days after receiving the plan, the plan is deemed approved. Approval of aplan constitutesafinding
by the state program representative that:

1. The origination or acquisition of student loans by the corporation or its agent or agents, a qualified educational institution or
an eligiblelender to eligible students or their parentswill assist the studentsin attending an educational institution and financing
the student's education.

2. Adequate provision has been or will be made for the payment of the principal of or interest on any bonds issued by the
corporation to finance the loan program.

3. Adequate provision has been made for the payment of the reasonable expenses of the administration of the loan program.

4. The proposed procedures for application of the bond proceeds, the collection of payments, interest charges and any other
matters concerning the administration of the loan program are in conformance with the law.

Credits
Added by Laws 2013, Ch. 228, § 1.

A.R.S. 835-773, AZ ST § 35-773
Current through the First Regular and First Special Sessions of the Fifty-first Legidature
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A. CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND INDUCEMENT

Members of the Board of Directors of the Industrial Development Authority of the
City of Phoenix, Arizona (the “Authority”), the Executive Director, and employees of
the Authority are prohibited from receiving compensation of any kind from vendors,
realtors, brokers, contractors, mortgage lenders, clients, or any similar entities or
individuals for the purpose of receiving preferential treatment of any kind.

“Kickback” means any money, fee, commission, credit, gift, gratuity, object of value,
offer of employment, or compensation of any kind which is provided, directly or
indirectly, to any member of the Board of Directors, the Executive Director or
Authority employee for the purpose of improperly obtaining or rewarding favorable
treatment in connection with grant assistance programs, client referrals or contacts.

The Authority prohibits members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Director
and any Authority employee from soliciting, accepting, or attempting to accept any
kickbacks. The Authority also prohibits vendors, realtors, brokers, contractors,
mortgage lenders, clients, or any similar entities or individuals from providing or
attempting to provide any kickbacks to members of the Board of Directors, the
Executive Director or Authority employees.

Authority employees will be immediately terminated from employment if it is
determined that they are soliciting, accepting, or attempting to accept any kickbacks.
Any vendors, realtors, brokers, contractors, mortgage lenders, clients, or any similar
entities or individual in violation of this policy will be prohibited from doing business
with the Authority. Finally, individuals or entities determined to be engaging in
kickback practices may also be subject to additional civil or criminal penalties as
provided under Arizona State Revised statutes and U.S. law.

B. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Situations of actual or potential conflict of interest are to be avoided by all members
of the Board of Directors, the Executive Director and employees of the Authority. A
conflict of interest may exist when any such individual’s personal activities or
financial affairs adversely influence such individual’s judgment or performance of
duties for the Authority. An actual or potential conflict of interest occurs when such
an individual is in a position to influence a decision that may result in a personal gain
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for that individual or for a relative or friend as a result of the Authority business
dealing. Personal involvement with a competitor, supplier or subordinate employee
of the Authority, which impairs an employee’s ability to exercise good judgment on
behalf of the Authority, creates an actual or potential conflict of interest.

Except for gifts allowed under subsection G of the “General Ethics Policy: Gifts,
Favors, and Extra Compensation,” no gifts or gratuities, unless deemed to be of
minimal value, shall be accepted by the Executive Director, staff or any member of
the Board of Directors from any individual or businesses that is in any way
associated with the Authority. For purposes of this paragraph, minimal value shall
be deemed as $25.00.

. PROCEDURES
Below is a key procedure to maximize the effectiveness of this policy:
¢ No later than 24 months after the last review period, the Board of Directors

shall, upon action of the Executive Committee, review and act to continue
and/or amend, or terminate this Policy.



The Industrial Development Authority of the City of Phoenix, Arizona

GOVERNANCE POLICY No. 101
SECTION 100 Original Effective Date:
ETHICS March 11, 2008
SUBJECT Page 1 of 7
Effective Date:
GENERAL ETHICS POLICY February 6, 2013

The Industrial Development Authority of the City of Phoenix, Arizona (“the Authority”)
was established in 1981 by the City of Phoenix under the Industrial Financing Act,
Arizona Revised Statute Section 35-701 et. seq. The Authority is an Arizona non-profit
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Arizona possessing the corporate
powers set forth in Section 35-706 of the Arizona Revised Statutes.

The City of Phoenix adopted the “City of Phoenix Ethics Policy” codified in the City
Code, Ch. 2, Art. Il, Section 2-52. Upon appointment to the Authority, each member of
the Board of Directors of the Authority agreed to comply with the City of Phoenix Ethics
Policy. The Authority formally adopts the following policies:

A. ATTENDANCE

If a member fails to attend three consecutive regular meetings, or more than 50% of
all meetings of the Board of Directors held over a calendar year period, the City
Council may declare the seat vacant and appoint a replacement. See City Code,
Art. 1 § 2-40.

Comment: Members of the Board of Directors are expected to attend all
regularly scheduled meetings and should make every effort to do so. The City
Council appointed each member of the Board for each member’s experience,
background and perspective in a particular policy area, and wants the benefit of
each member’'s consideration and judgment. Moreover, the Board of Directors
shall not conduct any business unless a quorum is present. Accordingly, if a
member of the Board of Directors must miss a meeting because of business,
vacation or iliness, please advise the chairperson of the Board of Directors or
Committee of the Board of Directors and the Executive Director in advance of the
meeting.

B. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

As a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, the Authority is subject to and must
comply with Arizona’s Conflict of Interest Laws.

Comment: The Authority, members of the Board of Directors, the Executive
Director and employees of the Authority must be constantly on guard against
conflicts of interest. In short, a member of the Board of Directors, the Executive
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Director or an employee of the Authority should not be involved in any activity
which might be seen as conflicting with the responsibilities of his or her position
with the Authority. The people of Phoenix have a right to expect that members of
the Board of Directors, the Executive Director and employees of the Authority act
with independence and fairness toward all groups and will not favor a few
individuals or themselves. The Authority considers Conflicts of Interest a very
important ethical consideration that requires its own detailed policy.

C. CONTRACTS WITH THE CITY

Arizona law prohibits any member of the Board of Directors, the Executive Director
or employee of the Authority who has, or whose relative has, “a substantial interest
in any contract, sale, purchase, or service to” the Authority from participating in any
way with the transaction. See A.R.S. § 38-503 (A).

Comment: As with other conflicts of interest, any member of the Board of
Directors, the Executive Director or employee of the Authority in such a situation
must (i) make known the substantial interest involved, and (ii) refrain from voting
upon or otherwise participating in the transaction or the making of such contract
or sale.

. DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Arizona law provides that, during an individual’s employment or service with the
Authority and for two years thereafter, no such individual may disclose or use
confidential information without appropriate authorization. See A.R.S. § 38-504(B).
“Confidential information” means any and all information which is not generally
known but which becomes known as a consequence of the individual's employment
or service with the Authority, whether relating to the Authority or a third party,
whether oral or in writing, and whether or not marked “confidential”, “proprietary” or
‘private.” “Confidential information” does not include: (i) information that was
generally available to the public at the time of disclosure; (ii) information that later
becomes publicly known other than through the individual’s actions; or (iii)
information that was already known to the individual before he/she learned it from or
through his/her relationship with the Authority. Moreover, if during the individual’s
employment or service with the Authority, such individual learns information that
constitutes a trade secret, he/she shall be obligated to maintain the secrecy of the
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information for so long as the information constitutes a trade secret, but in no case
for less than two years after the employment or service ends, unless the Authority
authorizes him/her to reveal information.

Comment: Members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Director and
employees of the Authority may have access to important non-public information
regarding the property, operations, policies or affairs of the Authority and/or of
the City of Phoenix. Such information may concern real estate transactions,
expansion of public facilities or other City projects. The leaking of this inside
information may benefit a few at the expense of a possible monetary loss to the
Authority or the City and a deterioration of public confidence. If a member of the
Board of Directors, the Executive Director or employee of the Authority are privy
to confidential information, such individual may not disclose that information to
any private citizen and should disclose it to other public employees only on a
“need to know” basis.

E. DISCRIMINATION

Chapter Xl, Section 2 of the City Charter provides: “No person shall be appointed
to, removed from or in any way favored or discriminated against with respect to any
city position because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, sex, political or
religious opinions or affiliations.” lllegal discrimination on the basis of sexual
orientation, age, marital status, pregnancy, disability, citizenship status, veteran
status, or military obligation or any other basis prohibited by law is also forbidden.
Harassment on the basis of sex is a violation of Title VII of the U.S. Civil Rights Act
of 1964, as amended. The United States Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission (EEOC) defines sexual harassment as “unwelcome” sexual advances,
requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature
when: 1) submission to such conduct is made wither explicitly or implicitly a term or
condition of an individual’'s employment; 2) submission to or rejection of such
conduct is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting an individual; or 3)
such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an
individual’'s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work
environment.

Comment: All people must be recognized, honored and mutually respected.
The United States and Arizona Constitutions, as well as numerous federal, state
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and local laws, outlaw various forms of discrimination. The Authority should
make available to every person — whether they are applying for a Board position
or employment position of the Authority — every consideration, treatment, and
advantage or favor that is the general practice to make available to all citizens.
The equality of opportunity to enter into public service, besides being the object
of various federal, state and local laws, is a central factor in achieving efficient
public service and good morale. The Authority promotes an environment where
all members, employees and citizens are respected and valued.

F. EMPLOYMENT

1.

Representing Private Interests Before the Authority: For twelve months following
the termination of a person’s service as a member of the Board of Directors, or
employment with the Authority, Arizona law prohibits such individuals from
representing another person for compensation before the Authority concerning
any matter with which that individual, during their time of service to the Authority,
was directly concerned and personally participated in by a substantial and
material exercise of administrative discretion. See A.R.S. 8 38-504(A).

Comment: Members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Director and
employees of the Authority may appear before the Authority on behalf of
constituents in the course of performing duties as a representative of the
electorate or in the performance of public or civil obligations, as long as they are
not representing any private person, group or interest for compensation that is
contingent on such activity.

Employment of Relatives: Arizona law prohibits members of the Board of
Directors, the Executive Director and employees of the Authority from being
involved in the appointment, hiring or supervision of a relative. See A.R.S. § 38-
481 and A.R. § 2.91.

Comment: Because hiring and supervising a relative is a special type of a conflict of
interest, it must be avoided.

G. GIFTS, FAVORS AND EXTRA COMPENSATION: Neither any member of the
Board of Directors, the Executive Director or any employee of the Authority shall
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accept any gift, service or favor that would lead toward favoritism or the appearance
of favoritism in any way.

Comment: Board Members or employees of the Authority should not accept gifts
(monetary or otherwise, such as a service, loan, thing or promise), gratuities, or
favors from anyone for the performance of acts within the regular course of
official duties. Board Members and employees of the Authority should refuse any
gifts or favors that reasonably may be interpreted to have been offered in order to
influence an Authority decision. Compensation for an Authority employee
performing that employee’s duty is limited to salaries, fringe benefits and any
personal satisfaction that such person may derive from doing a good job. While
a Board Member or employee of the Authority is the first to decide whether to
accept any gift, such person must recognize that others will decide if there is “the
appearance of favoritism” for such person having accepted a gift. Finally, Board
Members and employees of the Authority should be wary of accepting any gifts
or benefits from individuals doing business with the Authority or the City or whose
financial interests are affected by Authority action.

. Board Members and employees of the Authority must consider ethical principles
before accepting personal gifts of entertainment and sports/athletic activities.

Comment: After the above gift policy is applied, if a Board Member or employee
of the Authority accepts the entertainment or sports/athletic activity gift and does
not pay for it, such Board Member or employee must declare the gift with the
President of the Board, within two working days, using a “Declaration Form.”
Gifts must be declared regardless of whether the gifts are actually used by the
Board Member or employee. |If the President of the Board accepts the
entertainment or sports/athletic gift and does not pay for it, the President must
declare the gift with the Vice President of the Board.

There are three examples of gifts that do not require declaration:
a. A personal gift from a friend or relative, unless that friend or relative

has done business with the Authority, is doing business with the
Authority or is seeking to do business with the Authority.
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b. Winning or receiving a promotional gift from a community business,
where the opportunity to win/receive the gift is open to the community
in general.

c. Board Members or employees of the Authority who pay for a ticket or
elect to make a charitable contribution in the name of the donor for the
face value of the gift do not need to file a declaration.

d. Acknowledgements of voluntary service from the Authority.

e. All other gifts accepted must be declared regardless of whether the
Board Member or employee of the Authority personally used the gift.

H. POLITICAL ACTIVITY

As citizens, Board Members and employees of the Authority can and should
exercise their rights to register and vote in all elections including City elective offices.
The City Attorney, in opinion No. 60-012, determined that the provisions of Chapter
XXV, Section 11 of the City Charter, do not apply to citizen members of City boards
and commissions and, therefore, Board Members may participate in political
campaigns for City elective officials.

I. PUBLIC ACCESS: OPEN MEETINGS AND PUBLIC RECORDS

Numerous Arizona and City laws require that meetings of public bodies be open to
the public and that public records be available for inspection. See Open Meeting
Laws (A.R.S. 88 38-431 through 431.09 and City Charter Ch. 4 & 5) and Public
Records Laws (A.R.S. 88 39-121 through 121.03 and City Charter Ch. 4 & 21).

Comment: As declared in state statute, it is the official public policy of Arizona
that meetings of public bodies be conducted openly. Also, Arizona law allows
broad access to public records. Open government gives the public confidence
that public affairs are being performed properly.

J. USE OF EQUIPMENT, FACILITIES, OR PERSONNEL FOR PRIVATE GAIN
Members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Director and employees of the

Authority should not use Authority or City facilities, equipment, personnel or supplies
for private purposes, except to the extent they are lawfully available to the public.
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Comment: Public respect for its government is weakened when Authority-owned
or City-owned facilities and equipment are used by members of the Board of
Directors, the Executive Director or employees of the Authority for personal gain.
Authority or City office supplies, work materials and equipment are to be used
only for the Authority work. Taking Authority or City goods for private use is not a
“fringe benefit,” it is stealing. See A.R.S. §13-1802. Also, it is improper (and
maybe unlawful) for supervisors to use subordinates for their personal benefit.
Finally, members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Director and
employees of the Authority should avoid waste of public supplies and equipment.

K. WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY

The Authority promotes ethical conduct, transparency and compliance with the law.
Should any individual know of, or have a suspicion about, illegal or unethical conduct
in connection with the finances or other aspect of the Authority’s operations, that
individual should inform the President of the Board of Directors. If the alleged
wrongdoing concerns the President, then another officer or director of the Authority
should be notified instead.

Should the President or another officer or director of the Authority receive
information regarding alleged illegal or unethical conduct in connection with the
finances or other aspect of operations, those officers or directors shall inform the full
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall investigate all credible allegations
at all times respecting the privacy and reputation of individuals involved.

There will be no punishment or other retaliation for the reporting of conduct pursuant
to this policy. If the person providing the information requests anonymity, this
request will be respected to the extent that doing so does not impede any
investigation.

. PROCEDURES

Below is a key procedure to maximize the effectiveness of this policy:

¢ No later than 24 months after the last review period, the Board of Directors
shall, upon action of the Executive Committee, review and act to continue
and/or amend, or terminate this Policy.
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FAIR LENDING STATEMENT

The Industrial Development Authority of the City of Phoenix, Arizona is committed to
ensuring that all loan applications are treated fairly, without unlawful regard to race,
color, , national origin, gender, religion, age, marital status, , sexual orientation,
disability, familial status, citizenship status, veteran status or military obligations or any
other basis prohibited by law.
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A. GENERAL POLICIES

1.

2.

Accounting Method: The Authority operates on the accrual basis of accounting
and in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Accounting Procedures: It is the policy of the Authority that accounting
procedures will be reviewed and maintained by the Executive Director to ensure
that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as
applied to a governmental entity are followed in support of this Financial Policy.
These procedures cover accounting for all assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses, and allow for accounting entries, summaries, reconciliations and
reporting to be performed by Authority staff, an outside accounting firm or a
combination of both.

Chart of Accounts: It is the policy of the Authority to maintain a chart of
accounts. All employees, staff or advisors involved with account coding or
budgetary responsibilities will be issued a chart of accounts, and the chart of
accounts will be updated as needed.

Separate Program Funds: It is the policy of the Authority that from time to time
the Authority may designate separate funds for its programs. The authority to
designate such funds is vested in the Board. Separate funds may be restored to
the Authority’s administrative fund either upon termination of the program or
Board action.

B. COLLECTIONS AND LOAN LOSS RESERVES

1.

Collections: 1t is the policy of the Authority to ensure that all available means of
collecting accounts receivable have been exhausted before write-off procedures
are initiated.

Loan Loss Reserves: Loans will be treated as zero percent (0%) in reserve if
under 180 days in arrears, fifty percent (50%) in reserve if between 180 and 365
days in arrears, and one hundred percent (100%) in reserve if over 365 days in
arrears. The Executive Director may reserve additional amounts related to other
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loans as needed. If a loan is deemed by the Executive Director to be
uncollectible, interest will no longer be accrued.

C. CHECK APPROVAL AND SIGNING AUTHORITY

1.

Check Approval: It is the policy of the Authority that all requests for checks are
approved by the Executive Director and documentation of approval is kept on
record. In the absence of the Executive Director, or for reimbursements to the
Executive Director or for payment of the Executive Director's credit card
expenses, the Treasurer, the President of the Authority or any other Board
member designee of the President may approve check requests.

Check Signing Authority: It is the policy of the Authority to give check signing
authority to the Executive Director, the Treasurer, the President and any other
Board member designee of the President. Checks can only be signed by a
person not requesting the check. Checks issued for payment of the Authority’s
debts over $15,000 will require two signatures of individuals with current check
signing authority. Individuals responsible for check preparation and bank
reconciliation are prohibited from having check signing authority. The Authority
shall be responsible for keeping signature cards granting check signing authority
current.

D. CREDIT CARDS

1.

Credit Card Holder: It is the policy of the Authority to issue a credit card to the
Executive Director. Additional credit cards will be issued to the Authority staff at
the discretion of the Executive Director.

Credit Card Use: The Executive Director shall remit a detailed description of all
credit card expenses each month to the Authority.

Credit Card Limit: The maximum credit card line of credit shall be $5,000.00.
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E. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Executive Director will distribute the monthly financial statements to the Board
following review by the Treasurer. An outside accounting firm may be engaged, at the
Executive Director’s discretion, to assist in preparation of a monthly financial statement
compilation.

F. ANNUAL AUDIT

An audit will be performed at the close of the fiscal year by an independent accounting
firm. The results of this audit will be presented to the Board by the Executive Director.

G. ANNUAL BUDGET

Annually, prior to the beginning of its fiscal year, the Authority’s Executive Director shall
prepare a forecast of the Authority’s annual operating budget for the forthcoming fiscal
year and present the forecast for Board approval. The forecast will include estimates
and sources of income, operating expenses, and other expenses.

H. THREE YEAR OPERATING EXPENSE RESERVE

It is the policy of the Authority to reserve, against the assets of the Authority, an amount
equal to three years of operating expenses. The purpose of this policy is to provide for
ongoing expenses in the event of the Authority’s inability to collect any fees for up to
three years.

As part of the annual budget process, the Authority’s calculation of the upcoming year’s
operating expenses will be used to project expenses for the two succeeding years,
adjusting for possible changes in costs or other identifiable factors. The Executive
Director shall present this three year total for Board approval with the annual budget.
On Board approval, this total will create a reserve against the net assets of the Authority
in the next fiscal year.
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|. PROCEDURES
Below is a key procedure to maximize the effectiveness of this policy:
1. Review: No later than 24 months after the last review period, the Board of

Directors shall, upon action of the Finance Committee, review and act to continue
and/or amend, or terminate this Policy.
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A. PURPOSE

This document sets forth the investment policy (the “Policy”) of The Industrial
Development Authority of the City of Phoenix, Arizona (the “Authority”). The Policy
is intended to guide the Authority’s management in investing the Authority’s
administrative funds and to guide the Authority’s Board of Directors in the oversight
of such investments, thus achieving the highest level of transparency and
accountability with respect to the Authority’s investment operations. The scope of
the Policy is limited to investment of the Authority’s administrative funds and is not
intended to cover investment of any funds held in trust accounts containing proceeds
of bonds issued by the Authority.

B. BACKGROUND

The Authority earns income from bond issue fees, ongoing assessment fees,
extensions of credit, bond redemptions, investments, and administrative fees.

C. STANDARD OF CARE

The Executive Director, and his/her designee, as administrators of the Authority’s
monies, shall adhere to the “prudent person” standard when managing the
Authority’s funds. Their duties must be performed with the care, skill, prudence and
diligence that a prudent person acting in a like capacity would use in the conduct of
an enterprise with like character and goals of the Authority.

The Executive Director, and his/her designee, shall refrain from engaging in any
activity that impairs (or has the potential to impair) his or her ability to make impatrtial
investment decisions for the Authority. The Executive Director, and his/her
designee, shall disclose in writing to the Board of Directors any material financial
interests as well as personal relationships existing with employees and/or officers of
financial institutions conducting business with the Authority.
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D. GOALS

The following are the Authority’s goals as they relate to its investments in marketable
securities, listed in order of priority:

1. Safety of principal: Safety of principal is the Authority’s most important
investment policy goal. Investments shall be made with the primary aim of
avoiding loss of principal.

2. Liquidity: An adequate amount of funds shall remain liquid in order to meet
anticipated cash disbursement requirements.

3. Rate of return: The Authority seeks a rate of return consistent with its safety of
principal and liquidity goals.

. CASH MANAGEMENT

The Authority shall meet its annual operating cash needs by depositing funds in
insured bank accounts. To ensure maximum safety, the Authority shall deposit, in
aggregate, no more than the FDIC insurance limit (currently $250,000) in any one
insured institution that does not offer a program, or programs, such as that described
in Section F. of this Policy. To the extent the FDIC, or other, insurance limit is
reduced, the Authority’s aggregate deposit with any one insured institution shall be
adjusted accordingly.

. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Given the priority of safety of principal, the Authority shall invest only in the following
securities:

1. U.S. Treasury bills, notes and bonds.

2. Securities guaranteed, insured, or backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S.
Government.
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3. U.S. Government Agency Securities (Government Sponsored Enterprises)
exclusive of mortgage-backed and commercial-backed securities.

4. Repurchase Agreements — All repurchase agreements require that a fixed rate of
interest be paid and further require that related collateral be delivered versus
payment to the Authority’s custodian. Delivery price of collateral shall be at least
102% of the dollar price with collateral marked-to-market daily. Maximum
maturity shall be one year.

5. Certificates of Deposit where maturing principal and interest do not exceed the
$250,000 FDIC deposit insurance limit (total deposits and maturing values of
CDs in any institution should not exceed $250,000 in aggregate, except as
delineated in this section).

6. Private fixed-income obligations fully guaranteed by the United States (such as
FDIC-backed assets).

7. Municipal obligations — Issuer must be a city, county, state, or other political
subdivision created by a government act. If the obligation is short-term debt,
then it must have a minimum “P1” rating by Moody’s and a minimum “Al” rating
by S&P. If the obligation is long-term, then it must have a minimum “Al”
uninsured rating by Moody’'s and a minimum “A+” uninsured rating by S&P.
Purchases will not be allowed for those issuers who are currently under review
by either rating agency for possible downgrade of their debt rating.

8. Money Market Mutual Funds must be U.S. Government, U.S. Government
Agencies, or Municipal Money Market Mutual Funds registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Federal Investment
Company Act of 1940. By prospectus or other fund statement of additional
information, the funds shall only invest in investments that comply with this
Policy’s requirements for authorized investments.

9. Bank deposits backed with a letter of credit (LOC) from a Government
Sponsored Enterprise, such as a Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), that insures
the funds in excess of the FDIC limit. The LOC would serve as the mechanism
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by which the trustee would draw the insured funds to remit to the bank’s insured
account holders.

G. PROCEDURES
Below are key procedures to maximize the effectiveness of this Policy:

1. Reporting: The Executive Director should receive bank statements and securities
holdings and performance reports not less than monthly.

2. Audit: A review of the Authority’s banking and investment activities shall be
included in the Authority’s annual financial audit.

3. Oversight: Administration of banking and investment relationships shall be
handled by the Executive Director and his/her designee. The Executive Director
and the Authority’s Treasurer shall provide regular oversight of banking and
investment activities. At least annually the Finance Committee shall receive a
written and verbal report on investments and banking activities from the
Executive Director, or his/her designee.

4. Review: No later than 24 months after the last review period, the Board of
Directors shall, upon action of the Finance Committee, review and act to continue
and/or amend, or terminate this Policy.
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A. PURPOSE

This document sets forth the community impact fund policy (the “Policy”) of The
Industrial Development Authority of the City of Phoenix, Arizona (the “Phoenix IDA”).
The Policy is intended to guide the Phoenix IDA’s Board of Directors, Community
Impact Fund Committee (“Committee”) and management in investing the Phoenix
IDA’s community impact funds and to guide the Phoenix IDA’s Board of Directors in
the oversight of such investments, thus achieving the highest level of transparency
and accountability with respect to the Phoenix IDA’s operations.

This Policy provides for investment in the community outside the Investment Policy.
The scope of the Policy is limited to investment of the Phoenix IDA’s funds allocated
from the administrative fund to the community impact fund (“Fund“) by the Board of
Directors.

B. GENERAL

Community impact funds are to be directed for a public purpose to maximize
community or social impact, while seeking a return on capital. Returns may be
measured in traditional return on investment, such as interest on loans, or in other
impacts, such as education, job creation, innovation, improving social services and
similar non-traditional effects, or any combination of returns.

The Phoenix IDA may make impact investments directly or in collaboration with
other lenders, nonprofit organizations, educational institutions, foundations,
economic development groups or other governmental agencies. Recipients of
community impact funds may be businesses, 501 (c) nonprofit corporations or other
organizations whose mission is in keeping with the Policy.

C. GUIDELINES
Impact investments will follow these guidelines:
1. One hundred percent (100%) of the Fund's investments will be directed to

organizations with projects in Arizona, at least 60% of which projects shall be in
the city of Phoenix.
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2. No more than 10% of the Fund's total allocation shall be actively invested with
one organization.

3. Impact investments will be for no more than a seven (7) year period before the
capital is to be returned.

4. Loan fees and interest rates are to be at market rates, with adjustment possible
for social impact up to a 100% waiver of loan fee and/or a 50% reduction in the
interest rate.

5. Collection of receivables and loan loss reserves for impact investments are
governed by those provisions in the Financial Policy.

6. Proceeds from the Fund's impact investments will be treated as operating
revenues and maintained in the administrative fund.

7. Exceptions to any requirements of the Policy may be made on a case-by-case
basis by the Committee.

D. PROCEDURES
Below are key procedures to maximize the effectiveness of this Policy:

1. Multiple similar impact investments (“Programs”), such as the loan participation
program, shall be approved by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors
may delegate approval of individual Program investments to the Committee or to
the Executive Director.

2. The Board of Directors shall approve all individual non-Program impact
investments over $100,000.

3. The Committee may approve any individual non-Program impact investment up
to $100,000 and may delegate approval of individual non-Program impact
investments up to $50,000 to the Executive Director.

4. The Executive Director is delegated signing authority for all related documents on
approved impact investments. No authorization is given in this Policy to conflict
with the check signing authority provided by the Financial Policy.
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5. Administration of impact investment relationships shall be handled by the
Executive Director and his/her designee. The Executive Director and the
Committee chairperson shall provide regular
investments. At least annually the Committee shall receive a written and verbal
report on Fund impact investments from the Executive Director, or his/her

designee.

oversight of Fund

6. Review: No later than 24 months after the last review period, the Board of
Directors shall, upon action of the Community Impact Fund Committee, review
and act to continue and/or amend, or terminate this Policy.

impact
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EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT

A. GENERAL POLICIES

The Industrial Development Authority of the City of Phoenix, Arizona (the “Authority”) is
made up of a Board of Directors (the “Board”) which consists of not less than three or
more than nine members with a term of six years each. The Authority also employs an
Executive Director and additional employees.

All reasonable expenses incurred by the Executive Director or Authority employee while
representing the Authority are reimbursable at the discretion of the Authority or
appropriate officer. These include restaurant-type expenditures while meeting members
of the Board, staff, or otherwise conducting Authority business. This also includes
mileage for trips taken while acting on behalf of the Authority.

Travel expenditures are reimbursable for members of the Board, the Executive Director
or Authority employees, and do not include any personal expenditures incurred while
attending events on Authority business. Travel expenses for accompanying spouses,
friends, etc. are not reimbursable.

Commuting expenses to Authority Board or Committee meetings or to the workplace
are not reimbursable. Otherwise, mileage is reimbursable at the standard mileage rates
published by the IRS from time to time. Members of the Board, the Executive Director
and Authority employees are required to provide information about auto insurance
coverage and update such information annually or whenever changes are made to such
coverage. No reimbursement will be made for auto insurance expenses.

Requests for travel advances may be made, but generally must be estimated by budget
line item if in excess of $500.00. To the extent advances exceed actual expenditures
(receipts must be submitted upon return from the trip), the member of the Board the
Executive Director or the Authority employee must reimburse the Authority the
difference. Actual expenses incurred in excess of any advance will be reimbursed by
the Authority.
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B. PROCEDURES

Below is a key procedure to maximize the effectiveness of this policy:

No later than 24 months after the last review period, the Board of Directors
shall, upon action of the Executive Committee, review and act to continue

and/or amend, or terminate this Policy.
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October 29, 2014

Board of Directors
The Industrial Development Authority of The City of Phoenix, Arizona
Phoenix, Arizona

We have audited the financial statements of The Industrial Development Authority of The City of
Phoenix, Arizona as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and have issued our report thereon
dated October 29, 20140ctober 29, 2014. We have previously communicated to you information about
our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, as
well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards
also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant audit findings
Qualitative aspects of accounting practices
Accounting policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by The Industrial Development Authority of The City of Phoenix, Arizona are
described in Note 1 to the financial statements.

No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed
during the year,

We noted no transactions entered into by the entity during the year for which there was a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions were recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the financial
statements was management’s estimate of allowance for doubtful notes receivable balances:

o Management determines the allowance for doubtful notes receivable by identifying troubled
accounts as well as evaluating receivables and considering the entity’s financial condition, credit
history, and current economic conditions. Our conclusion regarding the reasonableness of the
estimate for the allowance for doubtful accounts was based primarily on the entity’s history of
subsequent collections and current period write-offs.

Financial statement disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Anindspendert rermber of Nexia Intemationd
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Difficulties encountered in performing the audit
We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

Uncorrected misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other
than those that were clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management did not identify and we did not notify them of any uncorrected financial statement
misstatements.

Corrected misstatements

Management did not identify and we did not notify them of any financial statement misstatements
detected as a result of audit procedures.

Disagreements with management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during our audit.

Management representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the attached
management representation letter dated October 29, 2014.

Management consultations with other independent accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the entity’s financial statements or a determination of
the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consuitant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the entity’s auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses
were not a condition to our engagement.

Our auditors’ opinion, the audited financial statements, and the notes to financial statements should
only be used in their entirety. Inclusion of the audited financial statements in a document you prepare,
.such as an annual report, should be done only with our prior approval and review of the document.

L A

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and
management of The Industrial Development Authority of The City of Phoenix, Arizona and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Wm% L7

Attachment
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
20 East Thomas Road, Suite 2300
Phoenix, Arizona 85012-3111

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the statements of assets, liabilities
and net position of The Industrial Development Authority of The City of Phoenix, Arizona (Phoenix IDA)
as of June 30, 2014 an and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position,
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all
material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (U.S. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items
are considered material, regardiess of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting
information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a
reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or
misstatement.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of October 29, 2014 the following
representations made to you during your audit.

Financial Statements

e We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter
dated June 12, 2014, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with U.S. GAAP. The financial statements include all properly classified funds and
other financial information of the primary government required by generally accepted accounting
principles to be included in the financial reporting entity.

e We acknowledge and have fulfilled our responsibility for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

e We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

e We have identified all accounting estimates that could be material to the financial statements,
including the key factors and significant assumptions used in making those estimates, and we
believe the estimates (including those measured at fair value) and the significant assumptions
used in making those accounting estimates are reasonable.

¢ Significant estimates have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with
the requirements of U.S. GAAP. Significant estimates are estimates at the financial statement
date that could change materially within the next year.
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Related party relationships and ftransactions, including, but not limited to, revenues,
expenditures/expenses, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts
receivable from or payable to related parties have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP.

No events, including instances of noncompliance, have occurred subsequent to the financial
statement date and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to, or disclosure
in, the financial statements.

We have not identified or been notified of any uncorrected financial statement misstatements.

We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or unasserted
claims or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements
in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation,
claims, or assessments through the date of this letter.

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the entity is contingently liable, if any, have
been properly recorded or disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Arrangements with financial institutions involving repurchase, reverse repurchase, or securities
lending agreements, compensating balances, or other arrangements involving restrictions on
cash balances and line-of-credit or similar arrangements, have been properly recorded or
disclosed in the financial statements.

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors for
transactions arising on or before the financial statement date and have been reduced to their
estimated net realizable value.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of
assets, liabilities, or equity.

Information Provided

We have provided you with:
o Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements such as records, documentation, and other
matters.

o Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

o Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary
to obtain audit evidence.

o Complete minutes of the meetings of the governing board and related committees, or
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

o All communications from regulatory agencies, grantors, lenders, and other funding
sources concerning noncompliance with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.
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o All communications from regulatory agencies, grantors, lenders, and other funding
sources concerning noncompliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements.

o Access to all audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from funding sources.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves:

o Management;

o Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

o Others when the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the entity's
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or
others.
We have no knowledge of any instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with
laws and regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements, or abuse whose effects

should be considered when preparing financial statements.

We believe that all material expenditures that have been deferred to future periods will be
recoverable.

There are no other material liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be
accrued or disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity's related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

The entity has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on
such assets, nor has any asset been pledged as collateral, except as made known to you and
disclosed in the financial statements.

We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies
related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented.
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We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and
grant agreements applicable to The Industrial Development Authority of The City of Phoenix,
Arizona, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and we have identified and disclosed to
you all laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or other
financial data significant to the audit objectives, including legal and contractual provisions for
reporting specific activities in separate funds.

There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations
(including those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of
contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose
effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for
recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance.

The entity has complied with all aspects of contractual or grant agreements that would have a
material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

We have complied with all restrictions on resources and all aspects of contractual and grant
agreements that would have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of
noncompliance.

We are responsible for determining whether we have received, expended, or otherwise been
the beneficiary of any federal awards during the period of this audit. No federal award, received
directly from federal agencies or indirectly as a subrecipient, was expended in an amount that
cumulatively totals from all sources $500,000 or more. For this representation, “award” means
financial assistance and federal cost-reimbursement contracts that non-federal entities receive
directly from federal awarding agencies or indirectly from pass-through entities. It does not
include procurement contracts, user grants, or contracts used to buy goods or services from
vendors.

We have followed all applicable laws and regulations in adopting, approving, and amending
budgets.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities.

Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) and
equity amounts are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to risk
and are properly valued and disclosed.

We have appropriately disclosed the entity’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or
unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net position is properly
recognized under the policy.
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e We understand that you prepared the trial balance for use during the audit and that your
preparation of the trial balance was limited to formatting information into a working trial balance
based on management’s chart of accounts.

e As part of your audit, you prepared the draft financial statements and related notes. We have
designated an individual who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, and/or experience to
understand and oversee your services; have made all management judgments and decisions;
and have assumed all management responsibilities. We have evaluated the adequacy and
results of the service. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for those
financial statements and related notes.

Juan Salgado, Executive Director

Murray Boess, Administrator
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
The Industrial Development Authority of The City of Phoenix, Arizona
Phoenix, Arizona

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statement of net position of The Industrial Development Authority
of The City of Phoenix, Arizona as of June 30, 2014, and the related statements of revenues, expenses
and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

dent renber of Nevia (1)
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Board of Directors
The Industrial Development Authority of The City of Phoenix, Arizona

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The Industrial Development Authority of The City of Phoenix, Arizona, as of
June 30, 2014, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

The Industrial Development Authority of The City of Phoenix, Arizona has not presented the
management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America have determined is necessary to supplement, although not required to be part of, the
basic financial statements.

Lot Lanoon bl L7
Phoenix, Arizona
October 29, 2014

(2)



THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 933,006
Accounts receivable 3,000
Interest receivable 34,728
Program receivables 1,973,005
Notes receivable, current portion 64,513
Prepaid expenses 19,368
Total current assets 3,027,620
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Investments 14,573,920
Investment in land 527,933
Long term notes receivable, net 220,304
Total noncurrent assets 15,322,157
TOTAL ASSETS $ 18,349,777
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 192,690
NET POSITION - UNRESTRICTED 18,157,087
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 18,349,777

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

OPERATING REVENUE
Early bond redemption
User assessments
Down payment assistance program fees
Fee income

Total operating revenue
OPERATING EXPENSES
General and administration
Bond administration
Other programs
Community investment
Program and project development
Loan portfolio administration
Total operating expenses
Operating income
NON-OPERATING REVENUE

Interest income

Total non-operating revenue

INCREASE IN NET POSITION

UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR

UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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146,484
972,698
1,537,040
121,951

2,778,173

965,984
11,667
27,760

311,365
64,067

2,815

1,383,658

1,394,515

118,413

118,413

1,512,928

16,644,159

18,157,087




THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Net cash receipts from down payment assistance program
Cash payments to suppliers for goods or services

Cash payments to employees for services

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from notes receivable
Issuance of notes receivable
Interest income
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchase of investment in land
Purchases of investments

Net cash used in investing activities
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided by operating activities:

Provision for allowance for doubtful accounts
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Interest receivable

Program receivable

Deposits

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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$

1,226,769
401,598
(630,139)
(654,731)

343,497

299,553
(250,000)
118,413
11,237,000
(370,433)
(13,819,920)

(2,785,387)

(2,441,890)

3,374,896

933,006

1,394,515

(3,000)
(11,364)
(1,135,442)
10,000
(1.476)
90,264

$

343,497




THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA

NOTE 1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The Industrial Development Authority of the City of Phoenix, Arizona (“Phoenix IDA") is a
nonprofit corporation designated a political subdivision of the State of Arizona. The
Phoenix IDA was established on July 7, 1981 in order to exercise its broad statutory
powers, including the power to issue conduit revenue bonds to finance “projects” as
such term is defined by the Arizona Revised Statutes, §35-701(8). All bonds issued by
the Phoenix IDA are special, limited obligations of the Phoenix IDA, payable solely from
revenues generated by the project being financed, and do not constitute a debt of, a loan
of, or credit by, the Phoenix IDA. The Phoenix IDA charges administration fees to bond
applicants and uses such fees to cover its administration costs and to support its
ongoing community and economic development programs in Arizona. The Phoenix IDA
is a special-purpose governmental entity engaged in business type activities. The
Phoenix 1DA is the primary governmental entity but has no taxing power.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles.

Use of Estimates in Preparing Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make a number of
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements. Such estimates and assumptions affect the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis,
the Phoenix IDA evaluates its estimates and assumptions based upon historical
experience and various other factors and circumstances. Management believes that its
estimates and assumptions are reasonable under the circumstances; however, actual
results may differ from those estimates.

Fund Accounting

The Phoenix IDA reports in a manner consistent with proprietary funds for their ongoing
operations and activities, which are similar to those often found in the private sector.
Enterprise funds are the only type of proprietary funds used by the Phoenix IDA.
Enterprise funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement
focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.

(6)



THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA

NOTE 1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition

A significant portion of the Phoenix IDA revenue is derived from issuer fees related to its
bond issuances activity and includes assessment fees, program fees and application
fees. Issuer fees are based on executed Trust Indenture/Loan Financing Agreements
and are recognized as revenue when earned. Other significant revenue is derived from
fees earned from a down payment assistance program through sales of mortgage
backed securities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Phoenix IDA considers all highly liquid instruments purchased with an original
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments consist primarily of certificates of deposit and land. All such investments are
stated at fair value based upon quoted market prices.

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable consist of amounts advanced to projects financed by the Phoenix IDA
and other non-profit entities. Interest on notes receivable is recognized as revenue when
earned. The Phoenix IDA does not recognize interest income on notes once they are
deemed to be impaired or non-performing. A note is considered impaired when, based
on current information and events, it is probable that the Phoenix IDA will be unable to
ultimately collect all amounts due. Non-performing notes include all notes for which
payment of principal and/or interest is more than 90 days past due. Cash receipts are
first allocated to interest income, except when such payments are specifically designated
by the terms of the note as principal reductions or payment of fees.

Allowance for Notes Receivable

The allowance for notes receivable is established as losses are estimated to have
occurred through a provision for doubtful accounts charged to earnings on a monthly
basis and is based on risk. Notes receivable losses are charged against the allowance
when management believes the uncollectibility of a notes receivable balance is
confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for notes receivable is evaluated on a regular basis by management and
is based upon management's periodic review of the collectability of the notes receivable
in light of historical experience, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability
to repay, and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as
it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information
becomes available.
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THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA

NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Program Receivables

Program receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect under the
terms of the contracts and agreements. Management provides for probable uncollectible
amounts through a charge to operations and a credit to a valuation allowance based on
its assessment of the current status of individual balances. Balances that are still
outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off
through a charge to the valuation allowance and a reduction of the related receivables.
Management considers all program receivables to be collectible at June 30, 2014.

Unrestricted Net Position

The Phoenix IDA’s reported total net position is entirely comprised of unrestricted net
position, of which the Board of Directors has designated $8,720,000 of net position for
specific uses.

Tax-Exempt Status

As a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, the Phoenix IDA is exempt from federal
and state corporate income taxes. Consequently, no provision for corporate income
taxes has been included in the accompanying financial statements.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A summary of the Phoenix IDA’s cash and investments at June 30, 2014 follows:

Cash $ 13,717
Cash equivalents, money markets 894,289
Cash held in escrow 25,000
Cash and cash equivalents : 933,006
Certificates of deposit 14,573,920
Investment in land 527 933

Total investments 15,101,853

Total cash and investments $ 16,034,859

The Phoenix IDA held $25,000 in an escrow account as of June 30, 2014, which
proceeds are to be used for its down payment assistance program, which assists low-
income applicants to purchase a residence.

The Phoenix IDA’s investment policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, is to match

investment maturities with cash requirements. The fair value of investment securities as
of June 30, 2014, by contractual maturity, is shown on the following page.

(8)



THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA

NOTE 2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014
CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

As of June 30, 2014, the Phoenix IDA had investment securities with the following
maturities:

Credit Quality
Rating Fair Value _Less Than 1 Year _1-5 Years
Certificates of deposit Non Rated $14,573,920 §$ 13,832,320  $741,600

The above securities are certificates of deposit with original maturities of twelve months
or greater which are not rated, that management intends to reinvest the monies as they
mature.

The calculation of realized gains is independent of the calculation of the net increase in
the fair value of investments. Realized gains and losses on investments that had been
held in more than one fiscal year and sold in the current year may have been recognized
as an increase or decrease in the fair value of investments reported in the prior year.
This amount takes into account all changes in fair value (including purchases and sales)
that occurred during the year. The Phoenix IDA had no realized gains or losses on
investments during 2014.

Custodial Risk — The Phoenix IDA places its cash with high credit quality financial
institutions and generally limits the amount of credit exposure to the amount in excess of
the FDIC insurance coverage limit. At June 30, 2014, all of the Phoenix IDA's cash
accounts were covered by FDIC insurance.

Interest Rate Risk — It is the Phoenix IDA’s policy to hold investments to maturity and
avoid any loss on investments resulting from an early sale or retirement of an
investment.

Credit Risk — The Phoenix IDA’s investment policies mandate the quality of investments
allowable for purchase. Specifically, municipal bonds must be rated AAA or better by
Moody's or Standard & Poor’s, or an equivalent by a second major rating agency. In
addition investments in U.S. Government Securities carry an implied AAA rating.



THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Phoenix IDA's Investment Policy limits unreasonable risks inherent in over-
weighting in certain financial institutions. In order to comply with its Investment Policy,
whereby maturing principal and interest on certificates of deposit (CDs) in any institution
should not exceed the $250,000 FDIC deposit insurance limit, the Phoenix IDA utilizes
the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (CDARS). This service is comprised
of a network of member financial institutions that each issue CDs in increments below
the FDIC insurance maximum, thus both principal and interest are FDIC insured. This
allows the Phoenix IDA to invest its funds with a wide array of banks by making deposits
with CDARS member banks that place the funds through CDARS, while ensuring all of
its deposits are federally insured. As a result, the Phoenix IDA has a vastly diverse
investment portfolio, and investments in any one banking institution do not exceed 5% of
total investments. As of June 30, 2014, investments in certificates of deposit utilizing
CDARS are as follows:

Financial Institutions Investment Type Fair Value
Alliance Bank Certificate of deposit account registry service $ 8,350,324
Kansas State Bank Certificate of deposit account registry service 4,010,821

Investments through the custodians in the certificate of deposit account registry service
program are, in actuality, investments made in muiltiple financial institutions at a level
covered by FDIC insurance and, as such, do not individually exceed 5% of total
investments.

Investment in Land

In January 2012, the Phoenix IDA entered into an agreement with the City of Phoenix to
purchase a 50% stake in the proceeds of the future, mutually agreed upon development
or disposition of a parcel of land owned by the City of Phoenix. Similarly, in September
2013, the Phoenix IDA entered into a separate development agreement with the City of
Phoenix to purchase a 50% stake in the proceeds of the future, mutually agreed upon
development or disposition of a different parcel of land also owned by the City of
Phoenix.

NOTE3 NOTES RECEIVABLE

Outstanding
Original Principal
Borrower, Terms and Maturity Purpose Principal Balance
Original loan was modified on Funds used to assist in the
June 30, 2010, in which $88,984 of acquisition and construction
interest was added to principal of of an affordable senior
$250,000 and the due date housing project, located in
accelerated. Interest only loan at 4%. the Phoenix metropolitan
All principal and interest is due area.
April 7, 2019. $ 338984 $ 338,984
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

Borrower, Terms and Maturity

Loan commencing July 1, 2002,
bearing interest at 4%, interest only
payments. Interest and any unpaid
principal is due December 20, 2040.

Original loan was modified on
June 30, 2010, in which $27,040 of
interest was added to principal of
$250,000. Interest only loan at 4%.
The remaining interest and principal
is due October 15, 2021.

Original loan was modified at
June 30, 2010, in which $65,000 of
interest was added to principal of
$250,000 and the due date extended
to 2021. Interest bearing loan at 4%.
Principal and interest due June 1,
2021.

Participation loan with Kansas State
Bank commencing July 31, 2012,

bearing interest at 4%, due
July 6, 2016.
Participation loan with Raza

Development Fund, Inc. commencing
August 30, 2013, bearing interest at
6%, due October 19, 2019.

Total notes receivable
Less: reserve for uncollectible
accounts

Notes receivable, net

NOTE3 NOTES RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Purpose

Funds used to assist in the
acquisition and construction
of an affordable housing
project, located in the
Phoenix metropolitan area.

Funds used to assist in the
acquisition and construction
of an affordable housing
project, located in the
Phoenix metropolitan area.

Funds used to assist in
the acquisition and
rehabilitation of an affordable
housing project, located in
the Phoenix metropolitan
area.

Funds used to complete
tenant improvements and
furnish the classrooms for
expansion of a south
Phoenix charter school.

Funds used to construct and
equip a new health care
facility in Mesa.

(11

Original
Principal

250,000

277,040

315,000

107,500

250,000

THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA

Outstanding
Principal
Balance

250,000

277,040

315,000

58,372

226,445

1,465,841
(1.181,024)
$§ 284817



THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA

NOTE 3

NOTE 4

NOTE 5

NOTE 6

NOTE 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTES RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

As of June 30, 2014, current and non-current notes receivable, after applying the
reserve for uncollectible accounts, consisted of the following:

Current portion $ 64,513
Long term 220,304

$ 284,817
CONDUIT BALANCE

The Phoenix IDA issues Private Activity Revenue Bonds that provide capital financing
for third parties that are not part of the Phoenix IDA’s reporting entity. The aggregate
amount of all conduit balance obligations outstanding at June 30, 2014, was
$1,526,544,850. The Phoenix IDA has no obligation for the repayment by the borrower.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The City of Phoenix City Council appoints the Board of Directors of the Phoenix IDA.
The City of Phoenix also provides certain administrative functions on behalf of the
Phoenix IDA. As of June 30, 2014, the Phoenix IDA had reimbursed the City of Phoenix
approximately $263,000 for administrative expenses.

Management believes that the transactions between the Phoenix IDA and the City of
Phoenix, Arizona are arm’s length transactions.

CONTINGENCIES

The Phoenix IDA is periodically involved in various claims arising in the ordinary course
of business, none of which, in the opinion of management, if determined adversely
against the Phoenix IDA, will have a material adverse effect on the financial condition,
results of operations, or liquidity of the Phoenix IDA.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management evaluated subsequent events through October 29, 2014, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

(12)



PO Box 58689 Birmingham, AL 35259-8689 Fhone: (800) 824-1708 Fax: (205) 879-3739

CONFIRMATION OF COVERAGE BOUND
(BINDER CONFIRMATION)

Apr 24,2014

ATTN: Vicki Negbee Email: Vicki.negbee@hubinternational.com
AGENCY: HUB International Insurance Services, Inc. - Phoenix BINDER CONFIRMATION 1.D:3518224
BINDER CONFIRMATION EFF:4/26/2014 BINDER CONFIRMATION EXP.5/26/2014
Dear Vicki,

We are pleased to confirm the following coverage that has been bound by the carrier shown below. Please note
that this binder confirmation is based on the coverage, terms and conditions listed below, which may be different
from those requested in your original submission. As you are the representative of the Insured, it is incumbent
upon you to review the terms of this binder confirmation carefully with your Insured, and reconcile any
differences from the terms requested in the original submission. CRC Insurance Services, Inc. disclaims any
responsibility for your failure to reconcile with the Insured any differences between the terms confirmed below
and those terms originally requested. THIS COVERAGE MAY NOT BE BOUND WITHOUT A FULLY EXECUTED
BROKERAGE AGREEMENT.

The terms of our binder confirmation are as follows:

INSURED NAME: The Industrial Development Authority of the City of Phoenix, Arizona
ADDRESS: 251 West Washington St., 8th Floor

FPhoenix AZ 85003
MAILING ADDRESS: 251 West Washington St., 8th Floor

Phoenix, AZ 85003

Policy Number: 02024309

Effective: 4/26/2014 to 4/26/2015

Carrier: Darwin Select Insurance Company NAIC: 24319

Coverage: D&O-PUBLIC OFFICIALS

Limit: $5.000,000 Public Officials Management
$5,000,000 Employment Practices Liability
$5,000,000 Policy Aggregate
$100,000 Non-Monetary Coverage-Defense Only
$300,000 Non-Monetary Coverage- Defense Only Aggregate
325,000 Crisis Only Management

SIR: $15,000 Each Claim; Public Officials Management
315,000 Each Claim; EPL
315,000 Each Claim; Non-Monetary Coverage

$5,000 Each Claim; Crisis Management



Terms & Conditions:

Endorsements:

CRC TO FILE TAXES

Coverage: See coverage form DRWN POL 1000 (01/2012) for terms, conditions and
limitations

Form: Claims Made

Insurer Information:

Darwin Select Insurance Company
Member of Allied World Assurance Group
Best Rating: A XV

Surplus Lines Insurer

Retro Date: Full Prior Acts

P&P Date: 4/26/95

All fees are fully earned.

See attached Coverage Features attachment for additional information.

Minimum Earned Premium is the GREATER of $1,500 or 25% of annual premium.
Backdating of coverage is not allowed.

By purchasing this coverage, you will be provided with toll-free and online access to
Employment Law Attorneys who will answer your organization's specific Human Resource
and Employment Law questions and provide access to state and federal employment law
changes and more. Insureds can access HELPLINE services throughout the policy period at
no additional cost.

Limits, deductibles, terms and conditions quoted do not necessarily match those requested.

This is only a summary and the Terms and Conditions of any policy will take precedence over
any proposal.

DRWN POL 1005 PUBLIC OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY
FPOLICY DECLARATICNS

SAA- 100 SCHEDULE OF POLICY FORMS AND ENDTS

DRWN POL 1000 PUBLIC OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY
INSURANCE PCOLICY

$1006 D8I SERVICE OF SUIT

PGU 1072 DEFENSE COVERAGE FOR TAX EXEMPT BOND CLAIMS

PGU 1052 MINIMUM EARNED PREMIUM UPON CANCELLATION

PGU 1008 AMEND PRIOR AND PENDING LITIGATION EXCLUSION 4/26/95

Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes section 20-401.01, subsection B, paragraph 1; this policy is issued by an
insurer that does not possess a certificate of authority from the director of the Arizona Department of Insurance.
If the insurer that issued this policy becomes insolvent, insureds or claimants will not be eligible for insurance
guaranty fund protection pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes title 20.

Premium:

Policy Fee
Company Policy Fee
State Tax

Stamping Fee:

Grand Total:

$7,997.00
$400.00
$245.00
$259.26
$17.28

$8,918.54



Again, keep in mind that the coverages offered in this binder confirmation may differ from that requested in the
application. Failure to provide the requested coverage shall impose no liability on CRC Insurance Services, Inc.
or its companies.

Thank you for the order and your continued support.

Broker: Truitt Taylor Email: TrTaylor@crcins.com

CONFIDENTIAL



PO Box 58689 Birmingham, AL 35259-8689 Fhone: (800) 824-1708 Fax: (205) 879-3739

CONFIRMATION OF COVERAGE BOUND
(BINDER CONFIRMATION)

Apr 24,2014

ATTN: Vicki Negbee Email: Vicki.negbee@hubinternational.com
AGENCY: HUB International Insurance Services, Inc. - Phoenix BINDER CONFIRMATION
1.D:3518228

BINDER CONFIRMATION EFF:4/26/2014 BINDER CONFIRMATION EXP:7/25/2014

Dear Vicki,

We are pleased to confirm the following coverage that has been bound by the carrier shown below. Please note
that this binder confirmation is based on the coverage, terms and conditions listed below, which may be different
from those requested in your original submission. As you are the representative of the Insured, it is incumbent
upon you to review the terms of this binder confirmation carefully with your Insured, and reconcile any
differences from the terms requested in the original submission. CRC Insurance Services, Inc. disclaims any
responsibility for your failure to reconcile with the Insured any differences between the terms confirmed below
and those terms originally requested. THIS COVERAGE MAY NOT BE BOUND WITHOUT A FULLY EXECUTED
BROKERAGE AGREEMENT.

The terms of our binder confirmation are as follows:

INSURED NAME: The Industrial Development Authority of the City of Phoenix, Arizona
ADDRESS: 251 West Washington St., 8th Floor

FPhoenix AZ 85003
MAILING ADDRESS: 251 West Washington St., 8th Floor

Phoenix, AZ 85003

Policy Number: NHS656945
Effective: 4/26/2014 to 4/26/2015
Carrier: RSUI Indemnity Company NAIC: 22314
Coverage: D&O- EXCESS
Limit: $5,000,000 Limit
In Excess of:
35,000,000

Terms & Conditions:
Form: RSG 231007 0609 Excess Liability Policy - 2009

Carrier:
RSUI Indemnity Company - (Best rating: A XIII) - ADMITTED

Please read all terms and conditions shown above carefully as they may not conform to
specifications shown on your submission.



This binder contemplates no change in circumstances that materially alters this risk prior to
the effective date and
time of the policy.

Notwithstanding the issuance of this Binder, or the payment or receipt of any premium in
connection with this Binder, it is understood and agreed that the insurance coverage, if any,
represented by the Binder shall be TEMPORARY AND CONDITIONAL, being subject to the
receipt, review and underwriting approval, in writing, of the additional information specified
above in the section entitled "Additional Information Required." If such information is not
received by the Insurer within 30 days of the date this Binder is executed by the Insurer, or
such information is received by the Insurer within the 30 day pericd but not given written
underwriting approval by the Insurer for any reason, then this Temporary and Conditional
Binder and any coverage represented by this Binder, in the form of a policy or otherwise, may
be declared null and void from its inception or ab initio by the underwriter. In such case, the
Binder and any policy represented by the Binder will have no effect.

The Insurer reserves the right to issue the policy after the 30 day period with a prior acts and
known circumstance exclusion. This exclusion would apply to any claim(s) arising out of
actual or alleged wrongful act(s) committed prior to the inception date of the policy as well as
any actual or alleged wrongful act(s) which as of the effective date of this policy, any
Insured(s) knew or could have reasonably foreseen could lead to a claim.

Coverage bound herewith shall be subject to all terms and conditions of the policy to be
issued which, when delivered, replaces this binder.

Endorsements: RSG 204123 0108 Disclosure Pursuant to Terrorism Risk Insurance Act
RSG 236008 0204 Exclusion - Prior and or Pending Litigation Backdated - 4/26/95

Premium: $7.,930.00
Policy Fee $500.00
Grand Total: $8,430.00

Again, keep in mind that the coverages offered in this binder confirmation may differ from that requested in the
application. Failure to provide the requested coverage shall impose no liability on CRC Insurance Services, Inc.
or its companies.

Thank you for the order and your continued support.

Broker: Truitt Taylor Email: TrTaylor@crcins.com

CONFIDENTIAL



Retail Producer:
B Vicki Negbee
k Hub International - Phoenix
2375 E Camelback Road, Suite 250

Risk Placement Services, Inc. Phoenix, AZ 85016
g‘;;”uz:'zigﬂi;dier:;’:’_onSh“PS- Phone: (602) 395-9111

Fax: (602) 385-0222
Email: vicki.negbee@hubinternational.com

INSURANCE BINDER

Apr 23, 2014 RPS Submission #: 0306010F

Binder Information

Insured Name: The Industrial Development Authority
Policy Number: 3DT7417

Policy Period: 4/26/2014 to 4/26/2015

Insurance Carrier: Essex Insurance Company NAIC #: 39020
Admitted / Non-Admitted: Non-Admitted

A. M. Best Rating: A XIV

¢ Retroactive Date (if Claims Made coverage):

Physical Location

251 W Washington Sth Floor,
Phoenix, AZ 85003

Limits of Insurance

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence

$ 100,000 Damage to Rented Premises

$ 5,000 Medical Expense

Exclusion Personal & Advertising Injury
$2,000,000 General Aggregate

Exclusion Products/Comp. Ops. Aggregate
Deductible

$ 500 Each Liability Claim incl LAE

Rating Information

GENERAL LIABILITY

61224 - Buidlling or Premises - Office = $500 Minimum Premium
HCNOA = $350 Flat Charge

EBL = $250 Minimum Premium



Premium Summary

Premium $1,100.00

Minimum Earned Premium: 25%

TRIA Premium: REJECTED

(All applicable taxes and fees are Fully Earned unless otherwise specified.)

Fees:
Broker Fee $150.00

Tax State (or home state): AZ

SURPLUS LINES TAXES:

Surplus Lines Tax $37.50
Stamping Office Fee $2.50
TOTAL $1,290.00

Coverage Notes

Flat cancellation is not permitted. Minimum earned premium provision applies.

Forms / Endorsements

See the schedule of forms.
Sample copies of forms are available on request.

Terms & Conditions

Binder Issuance is Subject To:
See the schedule of forms.

GENERAL LIABILITY

Terms do not include any additional insured.

Terms exclude products-completed operations.

Terms exclude personal and advertising injury.

Terms exclude fiduciary or representative liability.

Terms include Hired Car and Non-Owned Auto with $1,000,000/$1,000,000 limits.

- Definition of employee for HCNQA includes board members.

Terms include Employee Benefits Liability Coverage with $1mil/$1mil limits - Retro Date Policy Inception.

]

This binder does not include all the terms, coverages, exclusions, limitations, conditions of the actual contract language. The
policies themselves must be read for those details. Policy forms for your reference will be made available upon request.



I ) PHOENIXIDA

Bonds - Other than Single Family
Beginning Balance  7/1/2013
Fully Retired/Refunded in FY
Principal Payments during FY
Fiscal Year Reductions
Net
Original Principal - New Issues
Principal Payments during FY
Net Increase from New Issues

Ending Balance 7/1/2014

Single Family Bonds
Beginning Balance  7/1/2013
Fully Redeemed in FY
Other Redemptions during FY
Fiscal Year Reductions

Ending Balance 7/1/2014

Total Outstanding 7/1/2014

Annual Bond Activity

FY 2013-2014

$ (71,189,813)

$ 1,133,983,003

$ (10,368,131)

# Issues

70 $ 1,205,172,816 $
-9 $ (53,347,719)

$ (17,842,094)

$ 381,102,764

$ (625,021)
18 $ 380,477,743
79 $ 1,514,460,746 $
12 $ 22,452,235 $
108 (124,350)

$ (10,243,781)
11 $ 12,084,104 $
90 $ 1,526,544,850

$2,000

$1,500

Millions

$1,000
$500

S0

Outstanding Bonds

H Single Family

% OSF - Net New

B OSF - Continuing

FY 2013 FY 2014

. $800 -

-]

£ 5600 -

3 $400 -

=

F$200 -
S0 -

$1,000 T

Issuer Fees

W Single Family

B Other than Single

Family

Yoo

Y
2013
2014 5p15

(est)

Issuer
Fees

971,000

FY 2013-14
actual

815,000
FY 2014-15
estimated

11,000

FY 2013-14
actual

5,250
FY 2014-15
estimated
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